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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Fleur Hotels Private
Limited (“"the Parent”), its subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm (the Parent, its
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm together referred to as “the Group”} which
comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Consolidated Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive loss), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information ( herein referred to as “the
consolidated financial statements).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership referred to in the Other Matters section below, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2022,
and their consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash
flows and their consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing specified under section 143 (10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraphs {a) and (b) of the Other Matters section
below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
financial statements.
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Emphasis of Matter

Attention is invited to Note 30 of the consolidated financial statements which sets out the Group's
assessment of impact of COVID-19 pandemic situation. Based on these assessments, the
management has concluded that the Group will able to meet all of its obligations as well as recover
the carrying amount of its assets as on March 31, 2022.

Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

- Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

= The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements, standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

« OQur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

» In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries audited by the
other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so, place reliance on the
work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financia! statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information so far as it relates to
the subsidiaries, is traced from their financial statements audited by the other auditors.

» If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive loss, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generaily accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materiai misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
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concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the management either intends to liguidate or cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also respansible for
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the averride of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent and its subsidiaries which are
companies incorporated in India, has adequate internat financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consaolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the
financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which
we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in
the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included
in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

(a) We did not audit the financial statements of 6 subsidiaries and 1 Limited Liability Partnership Firm
(as mentioned below), whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 113,214.53 lacs as
at March 31, 2022, total revenues of Rs. 5,533.38 lacs and net cash outflow amounting to Rs.
355.83 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose reports have
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership, and our report in terms of sub-section {3) of Section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and Limited Liahility Partnership
is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Subsidiaries and Limited Liability Partnership Firm included in consolidated financial
statermments and not audited by us are as below:

A. Subsidiaries - €
1. Inovoa Hotels and Resorts Limited
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. Celsia Hotels Private Limited

. Ophrys Hotels Private Limited

. Bandhav Resorts (P) Limited

. Berggruen Hotels Private Limited
. Tora Hotels Private Limited

n g

. Limited liability partnership firm -

1. Mezereon Hotels LLP

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the
reports of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and Limited
Liability Partnership incorporated in India referred to in the Other Matters section above we
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those hooks and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including
Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements,

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind
AS specified under Sectian 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on
March 31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports
of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies incorporated In India, none of the
directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2022
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A" which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent and subsidiary companies
incorporated in India. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of those
companies. o
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g)

h)

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by
the Parent to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group. (Refer note 33(C))

ii) The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts.( Refer note 33(C){iv))

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Parent and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India.
(Refer note 48)

iv) a) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds} by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent or any of such subsidiaries {("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

b) The respective Managements of the Parent and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act,
have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries respectively that,
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the notes to accounts, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Parent or any of such subsidiaries from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Parent or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances performed by us and those performed by the auditors of the
subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose financial statements
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have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor’'s notice
that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (i} and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

v) The Parent has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and has not proposed final
dividend for the year.

2. With respect to the matters specified in clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 ("CARQ"/ “the Order"} issued by the Central Government
in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and explanations given to us,
and based on the CARO reports issued by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associates included in
the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARQO is applicable,
provided to us by the Management of the Company and based on the identification of matters of
qualifications or adverse remarks in their CARO reports by the respective component auditors and
provided to us, we report that the auditors of such companies have not reported any qualifications
or adverse remarks in their CARO report except for the following:

sl CIN Name of the Company Nature of the | Clause Number of
No relationship CARO report with
gualification or
adverse remark
1 U55101DL2003PTC207912 | Fleur Hotels Private Limited Parent XV
2 U55204DL2007PTC166050 | Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned xvii
Subsidiary
3 US55101DL2009PTC192981 | Iora Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned XVii
Subsidiary
4 US55101MH2006PTC164475 | Berggruen Hotels Private Limited Wholly Owned Xvii
' Subsidiary
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)
Vijay Agarwal
O (Partner)
{Membership No. 094468)
\(Q/ (UDIN: 22094468A1STZU5306)

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2022, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Fleur Hotels Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, Implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting recards, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable te an audit of internal financial controls. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
ar error.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the
Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or dispesition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or Improper management override of controls, material misstatements due
to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, the Parent and its subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financiai controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established
by the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India.
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Other Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)({i} of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to 6 subsidiary
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding reports
of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W / W-100018)

ity

Vijay Agarwal
(Partner)

(Membership No. 094468)
(UDIN: 22094468AJS5TZUS5306)

o

Place: New Delhi
%Date: May 27, 2022



Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Consolidlated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022

Note No, As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(z) Property, plant and equipment 3 2,09,882.95 2,14,876.45
() Capital work-in-progress 4 30,439.94 23.864.61
{c) Intangible assets 5.1 113.33 18143
() Intangible assets under development 52 22191 -

() Goodwill on consolidation 51 25,054.35 25,054.37
(f) Right to use asset 3 30,687.78 37,706.24

(g} Financial assets 7
(i} [nvestments 0.41 0.41
(if) Other non-cirrent financial assets 5,866.60 6,038.07
-(h) Non-current tax assets (net) 8.1 975.30 1,209.1¢
(i) Other non-current assets 8.2 666,26 640,47
3.03,914.83 3,09.571.75

Current assets

{a) Inventories @ 549,50 483,29

{b) Finencial assets 10
(i) Trade receivables 1,492.08 1,986.63
(ii) Cash and Cash equivalents 3,500.41 8,613.96
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above - 1,568.50
(iv) Other current-financial assets 717.92 1,198.40
(¢) Other current assets 11 1,252.41 1,533.68
7,612.32 15,184.46
Total Assets 3,11,527.158 3.,24,756.21

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 12 9,245.52 8,289,77
(b) Other Equity 13 1,33,046.53 1,45,338.80
Total Equity 1,42,292.05 1,53,628.57
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
{a} Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 14 1,19,497.45 1,11,44809
{i1) Lease liabilities 17 28,035,82 32.358.56
(iii) Other finaneial liabilities 14 731.01 649,21
(b) Provisions 15 98.98 108.31
(c) Deferved tax Habilities {nef) 16 200,53 369.58
(d) Other non-current liabilities i8 1,837,01 1,978.32
1,50,400.80 1,46,912.07
Current liahilities

(a) Financial liabilities 19
{1) Borrowings 8,504.26 10,377.31
{i1) Lease Liability 157.88 410.54

(iii) Trade payablas
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 385,60 195,52
" - lotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 5,258.22 8,095 .30
and small enterprises
{iv) Other financial liabilities 1,651.64 3,622.37
{b) Other current liabilities 20 1,112.80 1,258.15
{c) Provisions 15 1,763.90 252,38
18,834.30 24,215.57
Total Liabilities 1,69,235,10 1,71,127.64
Total Equity and Liabilities 3,11,527.15 3,24,756.21
The accompanying nofes are an integral part of the financial statements. [t 49
As per our report of even date
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fleur Hotels Private Limited : .

ot A
g i Ender Pal Batra SonaliManchanda
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Conselidated statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Note No. Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Revenue from operaticns 21 26,975.97 11,579.86
Other Income 22 1,631.85 1,362.80
Total Inconte 28,607,52 18,842,66
Expenses .
Cost of food and beverages consumed 23 1,993.89 1,260.15
Employee benefits expense 24 5,329.61 4,011.69
Power and fuel 25(a) 2,765.81 2,109.91
Stamp duty expenses 25(b) 1,525.03 -
Other expenses 25(c) 8,223.55 . 5,598.82
Total Expenses 15,837.89 12.980.57
Earnings before depreciation and amortization, finance cost, finance income 8,769.63 5,962.09
and tax (EBITDA) (refer note 2.2(q))
Depreciation and amerilzation expense 26 7,927.13 8,329.31
Finance costs 27 12,777.88 13,665.26
Finance income 28 (395.18) (624.45)
Loss before tax (11,540.20) (15,408.02)
Tax expense:
(13 Current tax (MAT) 1.02 0.17
(2) Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 7.78 11.78
(3) Deferred tax ' (175.27) {1,908.69)
Loss for the year (11,373.73) {13,511.28)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
(i) Ttems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans 321 (23.94)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -

37.21 (23.94)
Total Comprehensive foss for the year (11,336.52) (13,53522)
Loss for the year (11,373.73) (13,311.28)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent (11,373.73) (13,511.28)
Non-controlling interests - -
Taotal comprehensive loss for the year (11,336.52) (13,535.22)
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent {11,336.52) (13,533.22)
Non-confrolling interests - -
Loss per equity share
(1) Basic 20 (12.30) (16.30)
(2) Diluted 29 (12.36) (16.30)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 1t049

Yo

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Maskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

N

Vijay Agarwal
Pariner

Place : New Delhi
Dale : May 27, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Patanjali G, Keswani

Chairman & Managing Director
DIN-00002974

Indler Pal Batra
Chief Financial Officer

Place ; New Delhi
Date : May 27, 2022

Chartered

Accountants

anchanda

Cofhpany Secretary
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Consofidated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
A, Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax - : {11,540.21) {15,408.02)
Non-cash adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses . 7.927.13 8,329.31
Waiver of rent (433.70) (824.69)
Finance income (including fair value change in financial instruments) (356.63) (585.35)
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 12,616.70 13,569.04
Provision for stamp duty 1,525.03 -
Gain on Termination of contract (323.67) -
Advances written off 7.15 -
Provision for gratuity 14.96 22.42
Provision for leave encashment (13,70} 439
Provision for litigation 13.10 13.10
Provision for doubtful debts - 96.04
Net gain on sale of property, plant & equipment (0.53) -
Net gain on sale of current investments {0.01) (0.40)
Operating profit before working capital changes: 9,435.62 5,215.84
Movements in working capital:
Decrease in trade receivables 494,55 2,992.62
Decrease/(Increase} in loans and advances and other current assets 624.97 (863.28)
(Increase) Decrease in inventories (66.21) 45.94
Dectease in liabilities and provisions {2,358.91) (1,409.36)
Cash Generated from Operations 8,130,02 5,981.76
Direct taxes paid {net of refunds) 231.22 628.23
Net cash flow from operating activitics (A) 8,361.24 6,609.99
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchase of property, plant & equipment including CWIP, capital advances and capital creditors (8,556.95) (6,768.34)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment (0.53) -
Purchase of investment in subsidiary companies - {0.11)
Proceeds from sale of current investment(net) 0.01 0.40
Other Bank balances - 1,368.50 (1,368.50)
Interest received 356.63 585.35
Net Cash flow used in investing activities (B) (6,832.34) (7,551.20)
Cash flows from financing activitics®
Proceeds from issuance of share capital - 17,474 80
Payment of Lease liability (2,596,52) (1,825.99)
Proceeds from long term borrowings(Net) 6,817.57 G98.89
Repayment of short term borrowings (641.26) (3,159.18)
Interest paid (10,122.24) (6,511.19)
Net Cash flow (used in)/from financing activities (C) (6,542.45) 6,977.33




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Cﬂnsol:dated statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Rs in lakhs) (Rs in lakhs)
Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) (3,013.53) 6,036.12
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginting of the vear 8.613.96 2,577.84
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,600.41 §,613.96
Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 10)
Cash on Hand 29.85 26.45
Balances with Scheduled Banks in
- Current accounts 1,960.56 1,803.51
- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months 1,610,00 6,784.00
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,600.41. 8,613.96
* There are no non-cash changes arising from financing activities.
1 to 49

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

WA W
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Date : May 27, 2022
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
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Chairman & Managing Director
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

1.

21

2.2

Corporate Information

Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the Group) is a
private company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of the Companies
Act applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Asset No. 6, Aerocity
Hospitality District, New Delhi-110037.

The Company, its subsidiaries and limited liability partnership {together referred as “The
Group”) intend to carry out business of developing, owning, acquiring, renovating and
promoting hotels, motels, resorts, restaurants, etc. under the brand name of Lemon Tree Hotel,
Lemon Tree Premier, Red Fox Hotel, Aurika, Keys Lite, Keys Prima and Keys Select.

The consolidated financial statements are approved for issue by the Board of directors on May
27,2022,

Basis of preparation
Significant accounting policies

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS), and the provisions of the Companies Act ,2013 ('the Act") (to the extent notified) The Ind
AS are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using
historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting, except for certain financial
assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value/ amortised cost (refer note 36).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing account standard required a change to
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {(INR) and all values are
rounded to the nearest lakhs, expect where otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company its
subsidiaries and limited liability partnership (together referred as “The Group™) as at 31 March
2022. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:

s Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities of the investee)

s  Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its invelvement with the investee, and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its return

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support

an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:
e The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
o Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
¢ The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights
]

the holdings of the other voting rights holders
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to conselidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(2)

(b)

(c)

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other evenis in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses
accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to
same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.¢., year ended on 31 March.

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 in the consolidated financial
statements, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost
of such property plant and equipment. -

Consolidation procedure:

Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent
with those of its subgidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based
on the amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements
at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the
parent’s portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to
account for any related goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup
transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in
full). Intragroup losses may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated
financial statements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from
the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into ling with the
Group’s accounting policies. All intra~-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are ¢liminated in full on
consolidation.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

2.3

(a)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (including deemed acquisition/ deemed
disposal), without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction, If the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit
or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

e & & & & & »

Summary of significant accounting policies
Business combinations and goodwiil

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests
in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the liabilities assumed include
contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition
fair values irrespective of the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated below:;

e Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and
Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively.

¢ Liabilities or equity instruments related to share based payment arrangements of the acquiree
or share — based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to teplace share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-
based Payments at the acquisition date.

o Assets (or disposal Groups) that ate classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS
105 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

¢ Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining
contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal
of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any prevmusly held equity mlerest is re-
measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulti :
or loss or OCI, as appropriate.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited _
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. At the end of subsequent reporting periods, such contingent liabilities are
measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with Ind AS 37
and the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
Ind AS 18 Revenue.

Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope
of Ind AS 109, it is measured in accordance with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured at subsequent reporting dates and
subsequent its settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest
held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net
assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses
whether it has correctly identified all of the assels acquired and all of the liabilities assumed
and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the acquisition
date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over
the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in
equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to
benefit from the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree
are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable

-amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within
that unit 1s disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or less on disposal. Goodwill
disposed in these circumstances is measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting
period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items
for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through
goodwill during the measurement period, or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to
reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognized at that date. These adjustments
are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement petiod does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year'ended March 31, 2022

(b)

(©)

Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

e & & »

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarity for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

* ¢ = @

The Group classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its operating
cycle.

Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the Company’s
functional currency. Presentation currency is the currency in which the company’s financial
statements are presented. Functional cwrrency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which an entity operates and is normally the currency in which the entity
primarily generates and expends cash. All the financial information presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) has been rounded to the nearest of lakhs rupees, except where otherwise stated,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their
respective functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,
However, for practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate if the average approximates the
actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(d)

Non-monetdry items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign curréncy are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in
fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Fair value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date except to certain instruments which are measured at Amortized cost/ historic cost.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

¢ Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liahility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
¢ Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities
¢ Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant {o the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable
s Level 3 -— Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable,

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(e)

The Group determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value. External
valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities. The management selects
external valuer on various criteria such as market knowledge, reputation, independence and
whether professional standards are maintained by valuer. The management decides, after
discussions with the Company’s external valuers, which valuation techniques and inputs to use
for each case,

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting
policies, For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest
valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other
relevant documenits.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the
change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine
whether the change is reasonable,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level
of the fair value hierarchy.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related dlsclosures are
given in the relevant notes. ‘

« Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (note 31)
* Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy (note 36)
e Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) (note 36)

Revenne recognition

The Group apply Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” which establishes a
comprehensive framework to depict timing and amount of revenue to be recognised.

In arrangements for room revenue and related services, the Group has applied the guidance in
Ind AS 115 for recognition of Revenue from contract with customer, by applying the revenue
recognition criteria for each distinet performance obligation. The arrangements with customers
generally meet the criteria for considering room revenue and related services as distinct
performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Group has measured the
revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative standalone selling
price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence
of its standalone selling price.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Group
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria to determine if it is acting as principal
or agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue
arrangements. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before
revenue is recognized.

Value added tax (VAT)/Goods & Service Tax(GST) is not received by the Group on its own
account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added tp_lh\commodity by the seller on behalf of
the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

®

Rooms, Restaurani, Banguets and Other Services

Income from guest accommodation is recognized on a day to day basis after the guest checks
into the Hotels and are stated net of allowances. Incomes from other services are recognized as
and when services are rendered. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Taxes (VAT), Goods
and Service Tax(GST) and Luxury Tax, Difference of revenue over the billed as at the year-end
is carried in financial statement as unbilled revenue separately.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, sale of food and beverage are recognized at
the points of serving these items to the guests. Sales are stated exclusive of VAT/GST.

Interest income

For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded vsing the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability. Interest income is
included in finance income in the income statement.

Dividends

Revenue is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Management Fee

Revenue from management services comprises fixed & variable income. Fixed income is
recognised pro-rata over the period of the contract as and when services are rendered. Variable
income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement.

Taxes
Taxes comprises current tax and deferred tax
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit and loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those
that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income,

LEESY
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach method on temporary differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

o When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

¢ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and
associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward
of unused tax credits (including MAT credit} and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

* When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
imitial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
and associates, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit available) is reviewed at each
reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss {either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are off%if_asl\egally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabiliti;@h@zia ;
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. X a
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Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for
separate recognition at that date, are recognised subsequently if new information about facts
and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits recognised within the measurement
period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information obtained
about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date.

If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised
in OCV/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain purchase gains. All
other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

Value added taxes/GST paid on acquisifion of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added taxes/GST paid, except:
¢ When the tax incurred on a purchase of assels or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the
asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable
¢ When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

Property, plant and equipment(PPE)

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous
GAAP, and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost incluides the cost of replacing part of the plant
and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use. Freehold land is not depreciated. Capital work in progress is stated at cost

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment
as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after ity use is
mecluded in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided as per schedule I of Companies Act, 2013 on Straight
Line Method over its economic useful life of PPE as follows:

Property, plant and equipment Useful life considered
: (SLM)
Plant & Machinery ' 15 Years
Building 60 Years/leased life
Electrical installations and fittings : 10 Years
Office Equipments 5 Years
Furniture and Fixfures 8 Years
Crockery, cutlery and soft furnishings 3 Years
Commercial Vehicles . 6 Years
Private Vehicles . 8 Years
Computers e kip Y vars
Ko P
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is
derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment
are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.

Intangible assets

On transition to IND AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
Intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2015, measured as per the previous GAAP, and use
that carrying value as the deemed cost of such Intangible asset.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in
profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as 3 years and the same shall be amortised on
Straight line basis over its useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment
annually at year end either individually or at the cash generating unit level. The assessment of
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective
basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest expense as per Effective Interest Rate (EIR).

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of an asset that

necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset until such time that the assets are substantially ready for their

~ intended use. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised

represents the actual borrowing costs incurred. Where surplus funds are available out of money
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated from such current investments
is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a project
form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average
of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to profit and loss during the
extended periods when the active development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated futy ’g’ffs
expected life of the financial }ability or a shorter periéih3

cost of a financial liability after considering all the coptra




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

()

Leases

‘The Group assesses that the contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To
assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group
assesses whether;

(1) The contract involves the use of an identified asset,

(2) The Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset,
and '

(3) The Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

Group as a lessee

The Group recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset for the
lease term at the lease commencement date, The cost of the right-of-use asset measured at
inception shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted
for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct costs
incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated from the commencement date over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assei. Right-of-use assets are tested
for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments over the lease
term. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses
incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar characteristics, the Company
adopts the incremental borrowing rate for the entire portfolio of leases as a whole. The lease
payments shall include fixed payments, variable lease payments, exercise price of a purchase
option and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. The lease Hability is subsequently
remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, reducing
the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made and remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease medifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments,

The Company recognises the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset. Where the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero
and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the Company
recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss..

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases for which the
underlying asset is of low value. The lease payments associated with these low value leases are
recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor
Leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Lease rentals under operating leases
are recognized as income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Inventories

Stock of food & beverages, stores and operating supplies are valued at lower of cost and net
realisable Value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition, Cost is determined on a first in first out
basis.Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated cost of completion and estimated costs necessary to make sale.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair valueless costs of disposal and its value in
use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Group of assets.
Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account,
if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used,
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations,
which are prepared separately for each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are
allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For
longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to praject future cash flows
after the fifth year, To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any .
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products,
industries, or country in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or
have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in
the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss
was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such
reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss umless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Provisions
General

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and
loss net of any reimbursement.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provigions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle
the obligation, the provision is reversed,

Contingent Assets/ Liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognised. However, when realisation of income is virtually certain,
then the related asset is no longer a contingent asset, and is recognised as an asset.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes to accounts when there is a possible obligation
arising from past cvents, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value.
Subsequently, it is measured at the higher of the amount that would be recognised in accordance
with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortization recognised in accordance with the requirements for
revenue recognition.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The group
has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The group
recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee
renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before
the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme
is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date,
then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the _1:11;65 ent will lead to, for example,
a reduction in future payment or a cash refund. S aaking
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Retirement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. Gratuily liability of
employees is accounted for on the basis of actuarial valuation on projected unit credit method
at the close of the year. Company’s contribution made to Life Insurance Corporation is
expensed off at the time of payment of premium.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OC] in the peried in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
e The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or
asset. The Group recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit and {oss:
» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and
» Net interest expense or income

Retirement benefits in the form of Superannuation Fund is a defined contribution scheme and
the contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss of the year when the
contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than the
confribution payable to the respective trusts

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A Hability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service,

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect
of services provided by employees up to the reporting date.

The Group treats leaves expected to be carried forward for measurement purposes. Such
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Remeasurement gains/losses are immediately taken to the
statement of profit and loss and are not deferred. The Group presents the entire leave as a
current liability in the balance sheet, since it does not have an unconditional right to defer iis
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group has the unconditional legal and
contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented
as non-current liability.
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Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular
way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt ingtruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

o Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through prefit or loss
(FVTPL) '

» Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A debt instrument is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

~b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortised costis caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acguisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or
loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables, loans to subsidiaries etc.
For more information on receivables, refer to Note 10.

Debt instrument at FVIOCI

A debt instrument is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL
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Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
cach reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes interest income, impairment
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecognition of the asset,
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the
EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVTOCT criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if
doing so reduces or climinates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as
‘accounting mismatch”}. The Group has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL,

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the P&L. '

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the P&L.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group’s consolidated balance
sheet) when;

s The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

s The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay io a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the fellowing financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans,
debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

¢) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset.

The Group follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables, -
<, lm
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The application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit rigk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL
which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls),
discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:
s All confractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call
and similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare
cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably,
then the entity is required to uvse the remaining contractual term of the financial
mstrument ‘ .
o (Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the
head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial
instruments is described below:

s Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

¢ Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: There are no instruments measured at
FVTOCI.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging

instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantec contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships
as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other
changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The
Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

This is the category most relevant to the Group. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss when the Habilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15,
Financial guarantee contracis

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to
be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of
Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

If a financial guarantee is an integral element of a debt instrument held by the entity, it should
not be accounted for separately.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires, When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
18 recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

Measurement of EBITDA

The Group has clected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and loss. The Group
measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement,
the Group does not include depreciation and amortization, finance cost, finance income and
tax. ‘

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accrvals of past or future operating
cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated.

Commeon Control business combinations

The Group accounts for business combinations involving entities or businesses under common
control using the pooling of interest method. The assets and liabilities of the combining entities
are reflected at their carrying amounts. The identity of the reserves are preserved and appear in
the financial statements of the transferee in the same form in which they appeared in the financial
statements of the transferor. The difference, if any, between the amount recorded as share capital
issued plns any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets and the amount of
share capital of the transferor is transferred to Capital Reserve Account and is presented
separately as Common Control Transactions Capital Reserve Account.

In terms of the scheme the amalgamation has been accounted for in accordance with the pooling
of Interest Method. As per said scheme, the financial information in the financial statements in
respect of prior period has been restated w.e.f the appointed date as if business combination
occurred from the beginning of the preceding period in the financial statements, irrespective of
the actual date of the combination. '

{t) Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares :
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be i
potential Equity shares into Equity shares.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to lidated financial stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2022

4, Capital work-in-progress .

Hotel at MIAL Aerocity

Particulars Amount
{Rs in lakhs})
Balance as at April 01, 2020 17,157.87
Additions during the year 6,703.99
Balance as at March 31, 2021 23,861.86
Additiona during the year 6,578.08
Balance as at March 31, 2022 . 30,439.94

Capital work in progress 2t office

Particulars Ameount
Balance as at April 01, 20240 ] 275
Additions during the year . . .
Balance as at March 31, 2021 2.75
Disposals during the year (2.75
Balance as at March 31, 2022 -

Ag at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

Capital worl-in-progress 30,439,94 23,864.61
CWIP Ageing schedule
Ag at March 31, 2022

) (Rs in lakhs)

Amonnt in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projects in progressi# 6,575.33 541945 5,594.87 12,850.25 30,439,94
Total 6,575.33 5419.45 5,594.87 12,850.29 30,439.94
As at March 31, 2021 (Rs in lakhs)
Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years More than 3 years
Projeets in progressit 5,419.45 550487 | 2.579.00 10,271,29 23,864,651
Total 5,419,45 5,504,877 2,575,00 10271.29 23,864,61

# Project work is under progress with structure works completed till first floor and block work under progress, Hotel is expected to be commissioned by 2023-24.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
5.1 Intangible Assets

Rs. in lakhs

Particulars
’ Goaodwill on
Software Total Consolidation
Cost
As at April 1, 2020 417.80 417.80 25,054.42
Additions 0.63 0.63 -
As at March 31, 2021 418,43 418.43 25,054 .42
Additions 8.51 8.51 -
As at March 31, 2022 426.94 426.94 25,054.42
Amoertisation and impairment .
As at April 1, 2020 168.94 [68.94 0.04
Amortisation 68.06 68.06 0.01
As at March 31, 2021 237.00 237.00 0.05
Amortisation 76.61 76.61 0.01
As at March 31, 2022 313.61 313.61 0.05
Net Block .
As at March 31, 2022 113,33 113.33 25,054.35
As at March 31, 2021 . 181.42 181.43 25,054.37
Net book value As at As at
: March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Intangible assets : 113.33 181.43
Note:

a) The Intangible assets are valued at cost. The Group has not revalued these assets during the vear.
b) The Group has tested the Geodwill for impairment during the vear.

5.2 Intangible assets under development

Meter snbstation work(Sector-60)
Particulars Amount
{Rs in lakhs)

Balance as at April 01, 2020 -
Additions during the year ] -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 -
Additions during the year 227.91
Balance as at March 31, 2022 227

Note: Intangible assets under development consists of cost incurred on development of enabling assets- 330K.A substation which
has expected completion timeline of 2023-24,

O ﬂm‘f:“




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

6. Right to use asset

Rs. in lakhs
Particulars Amonnt
Gross Carrying Amount (I)

At April §, 2020 ‘ - 48,820.36
Additions -
Disposal 153.28

At March 31, 2021 48,667.08
Additions -
Disposal 5,351.72
At March 31, 2022 43,315.36
Accomulated Depreciation (IT)

At April 1, 2020 8,855.68
Depreciation during the year {(apportioned in

P&L) _ 1,285.37
Depreciation during the year (Capitlised

during the year) 921,98
Disposal 102,19
At March 31, 2021 10,960.84
Depreciation during the year {apportioned in

P&L) 1,299.61
Depreciation during the year (Capitlised

during the year) 921.95
Disposal 554.82
At March 31, 2022 12,627.58
II1. Net Carrying amount(k-11)

At March 31, 2022 '30,687.78
At March 31, 2021 37,706.24

Notes: .
a) The lease agreement for leaschold properties is registerd in the name of the company.
b) Right to Use asscts are valued at cost.The company has not revalued these assets during the year.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

7 Financial assets As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
(i) Investments )

Investments at fair value through Profit & Loss

4,109 (Previous Year: 4,109) equity shares of SEP Energy Private

Limited of Rs.10 each fully paid. . 0.41 0.41

0.41 0.41
Aggregate book value of quoted investments . - -
Apggregate book value of unquoted investments 0.41 0.41
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhg
(ii) Orther non-current financial assets

Unseeured, considered good

Security deposits at amortised cost 5.550.42 4.818.54

Interest accrued on deposits with banks 144.00 440.38

Fixed deposits under lien* 634,44 779,75

Less Provision for doubtful assets (462.26) -

Total 5,866.60 6.038.67

* Fixed deposits under lien includes deposits lien marked with banks against guarantees issued in favour of
various Government departments.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

8.1

8.2

Non-current tax assets (net) Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs
Advance Income Tax (net of provision for taxation) 975.30 1,209,10
Total 975.30 1,209.10
Other non-current assets As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs i lakhs
Capital Advances 288.23 360.95
" Balance with statutory/ government authorities 59.53 59.53
Prepaid expenses 5.17 -
Reserve for straightlining of rent receivabie 313.33 219.98
Total 666.26 640.47

{This space has been intentionally left blank)




Flear Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

9

Inventories
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)

Food and beverages (excluding liquor and wine)
Liquor and wine
Stores, cutlery, crockery, linen, provisions and others (valued at cost)

Total

Asat As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lalhs Rs in lakhs
101.44 8170
97.55 102,15
350.51 20944
549.50 48329

Refer footnete to Note 14 for inventories pledged.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Flenr Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

16 Financial assets As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

(i) Trade receivablest*

Trade receivables
Secured, considered good
Secured, considered doubtful

Unsecured, considered good 1,492.08 1,986.63
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,387.54 1,451.67
2,879.62 3,438.30

Impairment Allowance (Provision for expected credit loss)
Unsecured, considered good - -
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,387.54 1,451,67

1,387.54 1,451.67

Total . 1,492.08 1,986.63
Trade receivables from non related parties 1,492.08 1,586.63
1,492.08 ,980.63

Ne trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Group either severally or jointly with any other persan, Nor any
trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.
The interest free credit peried given to customers is upto 90 days.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financisl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(i)

Balance with banks

On current & cash credit accounts

Deposits with original maturity of 3 months or less
Cash on hand

Total

Other Bank balances other than (i) above
Deposits with remaining maturity for [ess than 12 months

(iv} Other financial assets

1

==

Advances recoverable

- Employee Advance

- Others

Security deposits

Interest accrued on deposiis with banks and others

Total

Break up of current financial assefs carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Security deposits

Advances recoverable

Interest accrued on deposits with banks and others

Other current assets

Unbilled revenue
Balance with statutory/ government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Total

As At As At
Mareh 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1,960.56 1,803.51
1,610.00 6,784.00
29.85 26.45
3,600.41 8,613.96
As At As At
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in Iakls Rs in lakhs
- 1,368.50
- 1,368.50
As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
- 1.97
490,91 1,093.69
41.55 3325
185.46 69,49
717.92 1,198.40
As At As At
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Rs in lakhs

Rs in lakhs

1,492.08 1,986.63
3,600.41 8,613.96

41.55 3325

490.91 1,095.66

185.4¢6 69 49

5,810.41 11,798.98

As At As At
Mairch 31, 2622 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

19.84 38.70

788.76 1,077.03

443.81 417.95

1,252.41 [,533.68




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Noles to consoMuated firanclal staiements for the year ensded March 31, 2022

12 Espuity share capital

Authorjsed Share Capital Equity sheres
(Equity shares of Rs 10 ench)

No. of shares Ry n lalthy
As at April 1, 2020 12,13,00,000 1,21,000.00
Incrensef{decrense) during ihe year 1,45,50,4KH) 1,45,50600.00
As nt Mnrch 31,2021 13,58,50,000 13,585.00
Tnerenseftdesrense) during the year® - -
As at March 31,2022 13,53.5030("! 13.585.00
Authoriset Preference Shiare Capital Preference shares Proference shares

{Face Value of Ry, 100 ench) (Faee Value of Ru. 10 each)

Ne, of shares Rs in lakhs No. of shares Rs in Jalhs
As nt April 1, 2020 13,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
IncieaseXdecrensa) during, the year - - . -
Ay at Mareh 31, 2621 10,00,000 1,000.00 1,14,00,000 1,140.00
Increasef{decrease) during the year - -
As at March 31, 2022 10,00,000 1,000.00 l,ldgﬂil,ﬂﬂﬂ 1140400

* During (he previous year, Authorised Equity Share Crpitnl hes been increased eonsequent o amalgamatien, of Bapenia Bolals Private Limiied with Nightingale Holels Privaie Limited with fleur Hotels Private
Linnted,
Termsirights attached to oqulty shares

‘The conrpany has only one cless of equity shares having par value of Rs, 10 per shore, Each holder of equily shares is enlilled to one vole per shere. In the event of liguidation of (e company, the halders of equity
chares will be entitled to 1eceive remaining ossels of the company, afler distribution of all preferential smounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the nuntber of equity shares held by he shareholders,

Tysued equity capital

Equity sliares of INR 11 esch lssued, subaeribed and fully paid Nu. of sharey Rs in Iakhs

Ay at Aprll 1,2020 #,28,97,692 B8.289.77

Issued during the vear - -

Ag at March 31, 2021 B,28,97,692 /28917

Issued during (he year* 95.57.461 955.75

As nt March 31, 2022 0,24,55,153 9,245.52

* During the previous year, Authorised Equity Share Capilal hos been increased consequent io emalgamation of Bogoniu Hotels Pirvate Limited with Nightingale Fotels Privale Limited with Fleur Hotels Private
Limited,

(n) 8hares held by Holiftug company

As at Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2027
Nu, of shares Rsin lnkhs No. of shares Rsin lalhs
Equity shares of Ra, 10 ench fully pald up
Lemon Tres Hotels Limited 4,94,94 240 4,949.42 4,33,11,605 433116
{L) Detnils of shareloldors holding mere than 5% shares in the company
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
No. of shares % hefd Mo, of shares % held
Equity shariu of Ry, 1 each Cully pald up
Ianen Tree Holels Limited 4,94,04,240 51.53% 433,111,609 52.25%
APG Sirategic Real Estate Pool N.¥ 3,79,91,385 41.09% 3,46,16,555 41,76%
Drandelion Hotels Povate 1Linnited 49,69,528 5.38% 49,69,528 5.99%

(€) Aggregaie number of bonus share Jssued, shure issned Jor constderution other then eash and shares bought back durlng the period of five years Immediaiely proveding the reporting date

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
No, of shures No. of shares

(i} Hauily shares allolied as fully paid, pursuant io amatgamations (Refer nofe 40) 2,18,22,900 1.22,65,439
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statemnents for the year ended March 31, 2022
13 Other equity

Secarities Premium

As at April 1, 2020

Rs in lakhs

-1,48,601.94

Increase/(decrease) during the year 16,937,17

As at March 31, 2021 1,65,539.11
Increase/(decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 1,65,539.11
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss Rs in lakhs

As at April 1, 2020 (7,523.99)
Laoss for the year (13,511.28)
As at March 31, 2021 (21,035.27)
Loss for the year (11,373,73}
As at March 31, 2022 (32,409.00)
Other comprehensive income Ry in lakhs

As at April 1, 2020 (7.41)
Deoresse during the year (23.94)
As at March 31, 2021 (31.35)
Ingrease during the vear 37.21
As at March 31, 2022 5.86
dther component of equity Rs in lakhs
As at April 1, 2020 1,450.12
Deorease during the year (494.37)
As at March 31, 2021 955.75
Decrease during the year (955.75)
At March 31, 2022 -
Capital reserve Rs. in lakhs

As at April 1, 2020 (1,205)
Increase/(decrense) during the year 494,37
As at March 31, 2021 {110.65)
Increase/{decrease) during the year -
As at March 31, 2022 (7H.65)
Preference Share Capital-equity compenent Rs. in [nkhs

As at April 1, 2020 83.58
Incremsei(decrease) during the year 537.63
As at March 31, 2021 621.21
Increase/(decrease) during the year -

As at March 31, 2022 621.21

Asal As af
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

Other reserves
Securilies Premium 1,65,539,11 1,65,539.11
Deficit in the Statement of Profit and Loss {32,409.00) (21,035.27)
Other comprehensive income 5,86 (31.35)
Preference Share Capital-equity component 621,21 621.21
Other component of equity - 053.758
Capital reserve {710.65) (710.65)
Total - 1,33,046,53 1,45,338.80

Seeurities premium: Securities premiwn comprises premium received on issue of shares,

Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss; Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss represents balances of profit and loss at cach period/year end.

Other comprehensive income: Other comprehensive income represents accumulated balances of Remeasurement (losses)ygains on defined benefit plans,

Capital Reserve: Capital Reserve Account: Capital resreve account is recorded as difference between share capital issued and the amount of share capital

of the irausferor.

Preference Share Capital-equity component: represents component of equity of 5% reedemsble non cummulative Preference share Captial and equity

compensnt of Compulsary Convertible Preference shares issued to APG.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

14  Finsncial Liabilities

(i) Non-current borrowings

Term Loans

Indian rupee loans from Banks (Secured)

Axis Bank Limited (Refer note 17 to 22 below)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited {Refer note ! to 6 below)
Yes bank Limited (Refer note 7 to 13 below)

Indusind Bank Limited (Refer note 14 to 16 below)
Vehicle loans {Refer note 30 below)

HDFC Bank Limited { Refer note 25 1o 28 below)

Rupee term loans from financial institutions
Tourism Finance Corporation of India Limited { Refer note 29 below)
Aditya Birla Finance Limited (Refer note 23 & 24 below)

Total non-current berrowings

Current borrowings

Term Loans

Current maturity of long term leans

Axis Bank Limited (Refer note 17 to 22 below)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited (Refer note 1 to 6 below)
Yes bank Limited (Refer nate 7 to 13 below)

Indusind Bank Limited (Refer note 14 to 16 below)
Vehicle loans (Refer note 30 below)

HDFC Bank Limited ( Refer note 25 to 28 below)

Rupee term loans frem financial institutions
Teurism Finance Corporation of India Limited ( Refer note 26 below)

Tota)] current borrowings

Less; Amount elubbed under “Short Term Berrowings™(vefer note 19(i))
Net current borrowings

As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
37,866.72 32,484.18
11,866.07 9,871.09
39,259.97 41,223.20
8,300.60 8,499.48
145.96 210.09
10,769.96 5,733.50
- 406.55
11,588,17 13,019.99
1,19,49.45 1,11,448.09
855.16 1,505.86
902,33 838.43
3,013.17 3371711
540.83 28245
84,19 79,69
- 312.33
- 240.00
5,398.68 6,630.47
{5,398,68} (6,630.47)




Fleur Hodels Private Lindied
Notes 1o Consulidated finunclul staiements éor the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

Fuutn:

los to Nate 14 "Horrawings"

R iy bakhy

Note

Lender

Amount

Carrying rate of nforcst
us ot March 31, 2032,

Carrying rade of Diterest as
nt March 31, 2024

Repayrentt Madification of terms

Seenrkly! Principal terma and conditions

Kotuk Muhindra Bank Limited

809.00

B.00%

800

Lo shall be repoid by wey of 43 menthly Installinnts afler
noratoHum pariod of 12 nwsths Fom the dale of firat d)sbursement,

Kotak Mahindea Bank Limied

802.00

7.45%

Loan shall be ropaid ity way of 48 ssoniiy metefnents afler
worntorin period of 24 rianths fron the dete of firs dishurszment,

i secured by second charge on scourity ey under:

ta) First il axelnslve eliarge on all evlsting and Aitwre Curreat Assery of thie Bomower,

(b} First and exchusive chargs on all exisilng ond future Moveablc Fixcd Asrcts of tho Bomowor..

(v ) First and exelusive Equitable mertgage chargo on Immavenblo prenortics being land and building situated at S4B534,
Hosur Main Road, Blectronic City, Phasa |, Dangnlore, Enrnataka balouging to the Bormower.,

Kotal Mahindru Bunk Limltzd

373000

7.80%

7.95%

Kotulk Mohindra Bank Limitcd

2,300.00

7.70%)

7.80%)

Lan shafl ba repaid By way of 120 cqual monthly instaliments

The loay is seeurcd by:

rarting, from moaith followving the month of first disbussement of loaa. |+ Ficst and cxelusive charge o all exlsting and fatiiro ourrent assets and moveable fixed nsacts of the company

- Ficst and osclusive equitsblo shorge on immavenblo propectios being land saud building sitvated a1 5413¢55A Hosur Main
road Eleotronis.city Phaso | Bangalora Komiotaka
- Corpornte goasnaton of Flour Hotels Pr Lid.

Kolak Muhindr Dark Limited

6,000.00

170%

7.85% | The loon jx repaynble in 4% quarterly installments siacting from 39th
toall following the monty of firsL disburaement,

The laan is seoured by:

- Tirat and exelusive ¢harge on ol exisling and Auwrg viiment asgels, movable and noavable fixed assets of Gre hotel -
Red Fox Scctar - 60, Gurgaon.

- Substrviont ehargo an ol oxisting and futuro currert assets of tho Bonower cagopt current assets of the hotol - Red Fox
Soctor - 60, Gurgoon,

- Equitable Mortgage by way of exclusive oharge on the lond and building of Tted Fax Hotel Seclor40, Gurgusn,
~Minimum assot cover 1.2 4o be mainisined thronghaut the tence of Lank loan s par vajuotion aceepled by ban'ls,

Kolak Mahindrs Bonk Limited

2AB0.00

7.35%

Tho toan ls repayablo in 48 montlly instellments starting from aflor 24

month of moratorium.

"The loan i seeurcd by setond chutgo o
- on all existing and future current assets, movalilo and tumovable fixed assots of the hotol - ed Fox Sectar - 60,
Guegeon,

- Subservient elarae on all axisting and fitips corvei assels of the Borrawer extapt aureent assets of e hotel - Red Fox
Soslor - &0, Gurgaon.

4,500.00

B.13%

B.10% | The lomn is repoyablo 44 struciuned quarterly instaliment aftor &
monatarium poricd of 36 months from the date of first disbursement.

Ttis secured by
o) Exclusive ohorge on all immioveoblo fixed assets, ineveablo Dxod ossels ond eurrenl assets of Lemon tree Seatar 61
Gusgaou, and coveition cautrs withia Betol emisas of 20,000 sq.& {appox.

1) Eserow of all receivablos of the project insluding secority deposits.

o) Corpoiato puaratiee ol Lomaon Tree Pouls Limited,

d) DERA eguivalont o theee montlis nterest and vne quartor principal to be created In cuse of auy over dues boyond 30
days in (he foni of fixed deposits duly lien marked In favour of YRL,

* Minitnum seeunty eover of 1. 3x an immevenblo aid moveable fived ausets ol the projest.

Yoz Baak Limited

20,500.00

8.60%

The loen is repayable in 52 structured quorierly instaliments post
tmornlorium poriad of 36 mouths from iha date of first disbursemont,

It i5 socured byt

) First charge on all presont aud future mavablo & immaveablo fixod assols af Uhe projoct. Latmon Tres Brentier Hotot,
Kolkata, Loman Tree Provrier Hotel ie Puno, Lemon Tree Holel in secior 60 Gurgoon and approximatety 20,000 sqit
corvaition canire within the liotol prassisos,

b Escrew of all recaivables of the hotely including security deposits (if o),

o) Corparats guatentes of Laman Tree Iatels Linvted,

) BERA equivatont to 3 monthy interest and | querier principle to be ereated in case of uny over dues beyon 30 dayy in
tha form of fixed deposita July Hen murked in fuvour of YBL.

Yos Banl: Limited

12,300.00

B.15%,

8,108,

Tiho 151 1€ rapoyabla 6B striictured quaniey insialinont aficr o
moratorinm period of 63 ronths L the doie of frst disbursemont.

Tt1s sovwed by:

0) Lquitabla mortgage ovor 80% shase of Land aud building {oxeept 2nd burement, ground foor und first flocr) o pan
passu boaia with offier lenders for the project, Lemon Tree Prentier Hotel, Andher Mumbai,

b First chargo {on pari passa busts) on ther movable fined nsuots and alf urrent assets, both prosont and futura of the:
projeot, Lemen Tres Premier Holel, Andlior himbui,
©) Carpatate guarantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited.

=

Yeu Punl: Limited

2,12000

8,5B%|

"Tho principal sholl b repuid in 43 [istalments aler conplelion o

maiatoru of 1 year,

Tt is sceured by:

{u) 100% Cradit Guarants by National Credil Guarniss Trast Compeny Limited,

(b} Exclusive charge on Currart Aseels inunved throngh the sddittunal WCTL.

(¢ ] Beaond ehurae o the ¢nllre praject hnd (Cochln) slog with U struelure bulll thereon,

(d) Second charge or the all movable fixed rssels and current avsets (Prosent & futurs) of the Coahin
Tlete! Projects.

(&) Seeond cherge v the owvnedTreciofd holed propertics and ovee the bullding and strecturs in
respuct of lewschold laud for the opertional hotols {exchuding Vizag and Cocl
(1) Seeond churgs by vy of hypothesation of ol] the ewmenl rssets and movoable fved nasels (both
presen und futnro) of BHPL (excluding Vizeg and Cochin),

(8 Second eharge on fhe curront nuscls (Presont & future) of the Company {oxelnding project assels
ol Vizag Hatol).

(k) Seoond Chacge by vey of pledge on 30% Shares of BHPL held by Fleur Hoiels Pvit Lid {FHPL).

Vs Runk Limited

238700

=

Fes Bank Limited

£,307.00

b

Ves Bank Limited

118200

0.04%)

9.10%

Repayuble in 40 guarterdy instullient frony the date of the loan

1t ts seoured by;

) Excelusive charge oif {antiny projoet Jund sloig With siceturés built thereon and eharge on niovenble Gred assots and
ctrrent ussels of' Cochin holel project (for Torm =13 the ewnia? Treehold hotel propertics and over B buildbygs and
slegotitess i respeel of leaschold lond for the operational holets (exehuding Yizay and Cochin,

) Exclulve: ¢harge by way of hypotliccatlon ol ol (e curcenl asscts and maveable fixcd asscts {both prosmt & fisuea) of
DEHPL (exeduding Vigag and Coching,

<) First charge o (he currcit asscta{sccurity porteing to ovordeadt fhcilty) (Prosent & futuro) of the angml\y fonchuding
prajuet assets of Yizag hotel} ta seoure working eapital feility, d}30%
Pledga of Fleur Hotols Privato Limited (FHPL) sharcholding in BHPL,

o) Unconditional end Irrecocnble Corparate Guatontes of Flour Hotols Private Limited {FHIL).

Indusind Bak Limited

3.381.00

2.19%

85

Fhe loan is repoyablo 48 siructured quaricrly lustallment

Tt is seonred by:

) Pirsl chargo on #l) movanblo Bzed assats {both present and Future) and currand assots (both presend and futire)
inelnding Escraw account of the boerawer.

1) Fiest chargo on oll prasent and futurs immoveable fixed assels of tho project (130 Keys Lemon Tres Flotels in
Whilefiald, Bangotose) owned by borrower including the Jand and hotol building loceted ju Whiloficld, Bangelore,

) Hecraw of ol the jeaeivable of the projest inchuding seourity deposits,

d) Uncorditional and Irrevaocoble Corprirate Guuranies of Fleur Hatels Private Limlicd,

S} DISKA equivalent o 3 ponths interest ond | 4quatier pringipel 1o be sreated in cose of any overdue beyond 30 daya in
1he foven of the fyed deposits duly Hen macked in fovor ol 1D,

) Non dlsposal enderiaking exceuted by Flous Holels Private Limited for $1% sharca in barrower hald directlyindircetly,
um security gover 1.5x on immovable add movahle [exed pasels of the project.

Indusind Bank Linited

635,00

R.00%

8.00%|

Principul is repayment in 36 equal inslullments on lust doy of the
nonth afler 1% menlb of first avsllment,

(s sectred by recond charge with vaisting credil FuelBlics o cowriy e Under:

(a3 My olferation of vatire starent asscis, cisting & fre, conrising, inler alin, of stack of raw material, work in
progress, finishar gonds, reseivibls, book dabis and olher cwrront asssts & Mashinery.

(b} Cheg n fle enfire moveable and iwmovable fxed nssos of he camprny {prosont ond futore) of Leian Trea Hotels
in Whitcfield, Bangalore,

=

Undusind Bank Limiled

500000

8.23%

8.55%

Tenoc of 16 years with doer door tenor fility 5
mionths fron the dnte of first disburscment, inclnding moratorum

priod of nil months.

Itin yecured by:
=) First charge on all prosesut and future immavonblo assols of the Jofed " Lomon Tree Amarnits Beach Resot (At
Candolim, Gon)",

b) First chargs on all movealta fixed asssts (both presont and fitare) {including Esorow accotm opened with 107.] of the
hotol " Leman Tree Amaranie Boach Kesort (At Candolio, Goa)',
) Brelusiva charpe on ook debis, aparating cosh flows, credil eard reveivalias, comin 1, revenlits of whnlsoever
naturo and wherever arising, present and future through Eserow nechunisii of teh Hotel "Lemon Tres Amarante Beach
Teesart (At Candotin, Goa}
dy Escrow of all eash flows of Leman Tres Amursate Deach Rexort, Gon including sconrity deposits

Axia Hank Limited

10,000.00

7.85%

790%

Tonor of 18 years and 2 moenths including consiruction peried of 1.5
vours and snotatorium poriod af 2.5 yoars with tapaysscarts in with G0
gquarteely nnequal installnents.

p d)}@qlwu

s sowured by

u) Exclusivo charge by vy of EM aver the lond & building ac Plot Ha.1, Khwsra Mo, 979 ta 91, Kalarali,
Udnipurfndmeasucing 263005 sq. yards or 237513 sq. L.},

| b3 Exelusive chargo aver tho moveable fved nssets of the Udsipur Hote), both presext and fture,

(Bt ghiatgp by way of hypothecation of all the curvent essats of teaipur Hotel,

way of hypathecation of all the casllaws of Udaiprur letcl,

mon Ve Hotols. PACH of 1.50x shell be miaintained at ol tor, Any widdifionat eailnteral
e horel ahore ofeced by the borraygraale lnders (i e of art-passn ehorpe)

[
security ollienfhilgdhos
slall also be 0 Rbbui

Acconyts

/;Y RN
T3

arterag |




Tleur Elaiels Private Dlmlted

Nutes ia Consolidated Bnsncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Fuatnoices io Note 14

Ty iy fukhs

Nade Lender Amount Sarctloned | Carrying vate of Intevest| Carrying rate of Inferesd s Repyment! Mudifteailon of torms Securdly Prineipal ternis and condititns.
ag af Moreh 31, 2022| at March 31, 2021
1B |Axis Benk Linited 16,248.00 T.75%) 8.20% | Term Loan | & 1T Loon is repayable in 40 quartorly instabuonts with (1t is secured by way of
first instellment filling duo allor o parind of 3 yeurs frvo first {a) & firsl puri prssu chargs on the Bomowar's p'npcmes & assots, both prosent & futars, pertaining to the Lamon Treo
disbursemeal. 1Totel projest of the Company at Dellii Asracity Hospitotity Distriet {Exeept Praject Land).
Tonn Loon T1 is repayable in 39 quorerly installments commnieneing 6 [{b} A firel pard passn chargo on Company's all ravansies and bank socounis of fhe Compasy, {he Escrow wcoownt and anch
months afier Brsi disbursement. ol tho ollisr secowilts are roquired to be maintained! erented by the borrawer wnder any prajoct document or cantrac,
(¢} RUght of substitutlon provided by DIAL undor tripactita agreomant botwosn DIAL, )yacith Hatels and the Londer,
(d} Pledigo of 519 equity sharos of the Campney i favor of securily irostea L0, Axis Trwslos, Howevor, doring the year,
30% shoroholding is pladged ond against 21% shoveholding, Hon lias been sreated in favour of Trustes on the busis of Mot
disposable mdertoking.
() Corpamta guarantee of Lemat: Tree Hotols §.invited mid Flewr Fotels Private Linmited,
A non fund based facility of ts,3.00 erare fzom Axis bank Ltd, is scourcd by sevand charge, ceded by thie lom loan
* leniders, o o aforementioned ealire properilos, aasels, bonk acsounls, rovonncs, right of substinition poriaining te Lomon)
reo Hotel projoot et 1ellii Acrachy (esicept Projest Jmd) Including pledgo of 30% eqnity sharos and guarses of the
Flewr totels Privats Limiled, the maturity date of the TLY lom: is August 2024, far TL-2 is March 2024 & TL-3 loan of
axiy bank is Apri] 2033,
19 | Axis Bank Lintited 2,454.00 7.35%] 8.40%| WCTL Is répyable in 48 soqusl montlily instobments, Tanor ofiom is |14 is secured by:-
Syears from flic dae of disbursemont including 1 yaor of morntorium,
(u) T00% Credit Guacames by NCGTC.
(1) Ssvond sharge ovor all Uhe barrower's properties aud assets, both present nd fituro, periaining 1o Lewon Toos Hel
project, situated st Assot No. 6, Aerocity Hosphality District, New Dalls. {Exeept projeet land}.
(€} Secund chorgo/ nssignmentaf alf the revenues of the burrower fram e hetel ar olherwiso,
{d) Soannd ehargo on all the HEIPLs Lesk aceonns intluding withont Umitation, the TSCROW aecouil and crch ol the
other necounl(s) required to he maintained’ areuted by the barcower under any prajeot documentor eotract,
(2] Beoond alwerga’ assienment/ seeunity Interest on HHPLr. all rights, dfle, bencfity, ohimsilomands wider the
apreement, projeet d canlracts, i palicy and all liconses, pennits, aprrovals and consents
20 [Axis Bank Limited 2,464.00 7.35% -| WCTL is ropayablo in 48 equal monthly instelments, Tenar ol tounds | in respent of the project,
Gyonrs fram the data of dishursamant inoluing 2 yeur of moratorivu, | (£ Extension of Right of Substitution provided by DIAL for tha nssets arca § .a the rren whara e liotol s aperational.
() Extension of plodge of 3046 shaces of HHPL in fevour of Security Trusteo. i.e. and NIU for 21% ns exended for
exlsting faciitics.
(h) Al castiflows ta be done through ESCROW Accaunt,
21 | Axis Bank Limitod 4,770.00 T35%| - The laan is repoyable in 43 montly installmenty after & peried of 2 It ls se<urod by sceond charge:-
yaars of Moratorium. {0) EM over land & building situnied at Plt wo., Khosra %74 1o 981, Kalarohi, Sisrama, Udaipor (measuring
26,390.35q).
{1} Other movenble fixed assels of the Udaipur Hotels both present and future,
(c } Hypaibecation of ol the current nssets of Udoipur Hotel.
(d} Hypathecation of afl the cashflows of Udaipsr Hotol,
(e} Equilablo morgage over 80% share of land & building cxcept for Znd basement, grousd floor and Tt 4l
area admeasuring 5552,90 co.rilr-) Jocated ot Andler Kirla Rowd, humibai, baharashiin,
() Other uaveablo Dxed assets of the Kurla project, beth prescnt end tivto,
) Hypothoootion of all the cureal avsels of the Kurls Projest,
(h) 1 oredit puarsates by NCOTC.
22 |Axia Dank Limited 9,500.00 8 10% 8.15%) Tha Loan i repayable in 60 quastocly instalmenis aflet o worstorium (It is sooured by:
period of 5 yeany. ) Equitablo mevipape over E0% share of Lard and building {except 2nd basement, grownd floor and first floor) on pori
suszu bosis with ather lenders for the project, Lemon Tree Premler Hotel, Andlicrl Mumbai,
) First eharga (oo pori passy basis} o Uer movable fixed asscts and all ourrenl assete, Both prossat and futura of the
project, Lemen Tree Premier ilatel, Andher Mumbai,
0] Carporate geartntes of Lomon Tree Holols Limited,
23 |Aditya Bicle Finonco Limited 11,500.00 B.50% 8.60% | Tenor of 12 years wilh rapoyomont in 48 siructured quactorty s seeured by:
installment. Rapayment of tormi laan 1 in line with existing lendsr 8] Firsl exolislve shargo by way of Morigage! Hypotheoation an the imuwovable end movable fixed assuls (both prosent
rerayment sohiodulo. The Guslity hove Jovk-in tenor of | year frame the |and fiture) of Lemon Troc Prémtior Hotel Hiteo City, Hyderabad, fo provide mindmuin covor of 1.25% at all timos during
dato of firsl disbursment. the fenos of the loan,
- o b Fiest exclusive chiarge on the enrrent assots of tho Lomon Treo Promicr Hotal, Hitea Uity Hydorabad,
2 [Adinyn Blrin Finnase Linuited 000,80 i e s o it ek et oo bt o e 10 Bt oneo. eso e e S
Lenon Tree Premier Hotel, Hilee City, Hydorabad shall bs deposited,
) Usieanditional and Irevosable Corporato Guarantce of Lemon Treo Hotels Limited,
<) Dermand Promissary Noto (DEN),
25 |1DGC Dunk, 1,000.00 7.50%] 7.50%{ WCTL [& repnyable in 48 cqual monthly Instelmonts aftor | yerof |10 is secured by socond cllarge cver oxisling primiary tnd collalcral scourllies iatuding margages oreated in favonr of the
moratoriue, bauk at Lemon T'ren Hoted Qachibowli, Hyderabad,
26 |HDFC Nunk Limikd 1,000.00 130% <|'The principol shell b repuid in 48 mombly instelnients aber 11 5 sooured by sccond cliarae over existing primacy and colJaieral securilies tnoluding morlgiges created i favour of the
conpletion of mocatarium of 2 yeur, baurk mnd security ereated over the Assets of 1l borrower purchased aut of Whis facility, (Eemon Tree [ote] Guelribovdi,
[Hyderabad) ’
100% Crodit Guarantas by Natianal Credil Duorapies Trust Compny Limited,
27 |HDFC Bank Limlicd 6,000.00 7.00% B,49%| The Lawn is repuyubls in 43 Stmwtured Quartorty Instellmenis 1t is secured by:
a} Fisst ond exclusive chiepe o povable and immovable fised nssels at (e Lemor Tree Iotel Gaehibowhi, Hyderabod.
N b) Virst and exchusive charge on escraw sceaunl ol enlire cesh flows of the Lemaan Tree Hote] Gachlbowli, Hyderabad.
4} Carparaie guarnitee of Tsman Trse Motels Limited,
28 |HDFC Bank Limited 5,200.00 7.239%. - The princiml shalt bo ropnid in 48 nonthéy instalments afer T4 seetrad by
romplolion of moratorin of 2 year, (1) 190% Credii Guurantoo by Natlone] Credit Guneanteo Trost Compaay Limitod,
(b3 Extenstlon of sceond iuking chorge over existing primary and collatarnl soeuriiios incleding mortgages orcated in
fuvor of g bank and security created over th assets nflho barrosvor purchased oul of tts facility at Lemon Tres Fole]
X Grghibowli, Hydombad
20 [Tourisira Finance Corparation of India 1,800,060 B 12.30%| The Loan sholll Lo repaid In 30 quortarly installments aa par the Tt i wostrl by
Lid. schedule, The loan was fufly repaid duiing Ue year 4} First ¢hurie by way of mortgage of lcaschold rights of plod of lund admensuring 222053 squitr. Icated at door o, 31-
33-60 (New No. 31-32-60), Assessruent Mo, 17016, Block Ne.36, T.8. Ne. 1176, Allipurom Ward, Soraswathi Pork,
Dabagurdens, Vizag ¢ Vishakhapatuai}, Andhra Pradash with all the building and sirctures thercon, balb prsent and
[ 1) First olrge hy way of
ypothesation in fivar of tho [audors of al the Horcavier's moveablas pm'tnuung o Its Notol (savo and st bowk dshis),
including movenblc moclinery, mochinery spares, toals & ional ftems R ional yealied items,
Rosorts equipments, Crockeny, Vs VCORs! VCPs! DVDs il modern eleotricals aud electonic upplisnces, Curpets, cfc.
miesont and filure subject to prior clorges ereated and 7 or to be ereated in fivour of the Dogrowsts bankers on 1he
Borrowor's movenblos, as moy bo ngreed 1o by the Lendurs o seoure the barrowvlags Do warking capital requicements in
the ordinary conrse of business,
30 | Vebilo lopw (differont bauks) - These toans rre repaid on agreed montldy nstaliments,

Vehlele lo=n i3 secked by Iiypothcaatian of andeclying mator veticle acquired out of sugh loaas from EDFC Bk
Limitead and Az Bank Limited.

\ga from

far t

) The Group haa wol defiulted in the repayment of lomns ned faterest as o Baluics Shoot dato.
) Banik lorurs avaited by tho Group arc subjest to crtain cavenminla retaiing to fiorost coverage catia, dobt service caverage ratio, capital geering ratio, fired assots soverage mia.
The Group has complion taken waiver for the opvennmts from bk oud finenoia] institutions ns por Uro feris of the loas ayreement,

(iv) Tho Group hus uved b

e of warking capital requirement andror satting nos profeats. Grouy has wilized funds from s internal seorals for meking investmont in subsidiory loat: to subsidiary.

() Basid ort weveral lenms and cc-udmons as specified in sanction felers, e mmpuny -m‘umus uurierly rofurns/statements consprising of lease depesit sohedules, eash flow mismiateh statements and wnoudited quartccly stacemants with banks’ finonoial institation aid Dheso relensiaiatemenis are in apresment with the bookn of

accanns,




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Naotes to consolidated financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(i) Other financial liabilities
Seeurity deposits

Total

15 Provisions

Provision for gratuity
Current
Non-current

Provision for leave benefits
Current
Non-current

Provision for litigations (Refer note 34(c))
Current
Nen-current

Provision for stamp duty
Current
Non-current

Ttal current
Totn] non-current

Asat Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
731.01 649.21
731.01 649.21
As at Agat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in Iakls Rs in lakhs
124,75 146,99
25,77 38.68
98.98 108,31
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
Rs in Jakhs Rs in lakhs
106.76 12047
106.76 120,47
Asai Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
106,33 0323
106.33 93.23
Asat | Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
1,525,03 -
1,525.03
1,763,350 252,38
58,98 108.31
OTE&Q?
Sy A
fo &
) -
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated finanecial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

16 Deferred tax liabilities (net) As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs

Property, plant and equipments and intangible assets 10,581.22 10,814.25
Borrowings cost : 10.33 13.73
Security deposits 317.33 300.78
Revaluation of land 6,683.95 6,684 88
Deferred tax liability 17,592.83 17,813.64
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and less in 58.44 38.29
the current/ earlier period but allowable for tax purposes on payment

basis :

Interest on loan 1,307.23 288.75
Provision for bonus 6.67 8.76
Provision for doubtful debts and advances 62.36 57.03
Right to use asset/lease Hability 1,458.29 1,226.92
MAT credit entitlement 1,315.74 1,321.99
Effect of unabsorbed depreciation and business loss 12,579.77 13,938.14
Provision for gratuity 36.24 34.42
Provision for leave compensation 29.14 35.83
Non meving inventory 1.52 1.52
Security deposits payable 486.12 451.88
Borrowings cost 21.20 14.59
Others 29.58 25.94
Deferred tax asset 17,392.30 17.444.07
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 200.53 369.58

Reconctliation of tax expense and the acconnting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31,

2022 and March 31, 2021:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Profit/(loss) before tax (11,540.20) (15,408.02)
Tax rate 2517% - 27.82% 25.17% - 27.82%
Tax at statutory income tax rate (3,139.75) 4.216.41)
Effect of incomes taxable at nil/lower rate . 198.60 109.67
Effect of non-deductible expenses 2.02 3.07
Tax Effect of expenses/ income not allowed/ required to tax under - 11.88 (956.36)
Income tax charge/ (credit) in respect of earlier year
Unrecognized tax assets (net) 2,850.78 3,367.89
Other adjustments ' - (204.60)
Net {166.47) (1,896.74)




Tleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to lidated financinf stat

17 Lease liabifity

Balance at beginning of the year
Deletion during the year

Interest acerned during the year
Payment of lease liabilities
Balance at end of the year

Current
Non-Cnrrent

18  Other Non-current liabilities

Unamortised portion of security deposits

Total

for the year ended March 31, 2022

Asat Asat
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in Jakhs
32,769.10 31,942.48
4,555.31 56.65
3,020.12 3,123.42
3,030.21 2,240.15
28,193,70 32,769.10
157.88 41054
28,035.82 32,358.56
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lalhs Rs in lakhs
1,837.01 1,978.32
1,§37.01 1,578.32

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

19 Financial liabilities

(i) Short Term Borrowings
Cash credit from banks (Secured)*
Loan from related party

Current maturities of long-term borrowings (refer note 14(i))

Total

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,559.88 3,010.34
545.70 736.50
5,398.68 6,630.47
8,504.26 10,377.31

A *The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.50% to 10.55%% p.a. and is secured by

way of’

a)Exclusive charge on all movable assets and current assets of Lemon Tree Hotel Kolkata and Lemon Tree Premier Pune and
b) First charge on all present & futute immovable fixed assets(80% portion of undivided part of land) of the Lemon Tree Premier

Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai

¢)First charge on all present & future movable fixed assets and current assets of the Lemon Tree Premier Andheri kurla Road, Mumbai

d) Corporate Gaurantee of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

B *The Cash credit facility from Yes Bank is repayable on demand and carries interest rate of 9.10% and is secured by way of:
a) First Charge on the current assets (Present & Future) of the company (excluding project assets of Vizag Hotel) to secure the working

capital facility.

(i) Trade payables#

Trade Payables
-Micro and small enterprises
-Other than Micro and small enterprises

Total

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2020
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
385.60 199.52
5,258.22 §,095.30
5,643.82 §,294.82
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iii) Other financial liabilities

20

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
STP Liability
EPCG Liability
Book overdraft
-Payable for capital goods
-Sundry Deposits
Total

Other current liabilities

Advance from customers

Unamortised portion of security deposits

Statutory Dues (Provident fund, GST, TDS and other statory dues)
Total

Asat
March 31, 2022 44,286
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
195,58 175.60
235.00 235.00
168.06 318.40
43.82 184.93
962.74 2,661.98
46.44 46,44
1,651.64 3,622.37
As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
432.29 747,40
141.31 141.31
539.21 369.44
1,112.80 1,258.15




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to conselidated financial sintentents for the vear ended March 31, 2022

21 Revenue from operations

22

23

24

Revenue from operatiens
Sale of products and services

~ Roem rental

- Food and beverage (excluding liquor and wine)

- Liquor and wine
- Banquet rentals
- Telephone and telex

- Other Services {including service charge income}

Other Operating Revenue
- Management fee

- Cofgmission income
Revenue from operations

Other Income

Excess provision written back
‘Waiver of rent

License fees received

Rent received

Gain on Termination of Lease
Less; related provisions

Sale of License

Exchange difference (net)
Miseellansous income

Total

Cost of food and beverages consumed

(a) Consumiption of food & bevernges exclnding liqnnr& wine

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of food and beverage consumed

(b) Consumption of liquor & wine
Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchases

Less: Inventory at the end of the year
Cost of liquor and wine consumed

Tetal {a+b}

Employee benefit expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution te provident fimd and other funds

Staff welfare expenses

Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
20,951,52 13,952.07
3.844,27 2,381.66
371,87 162.24
123,30 30.67
0,50 1.3%8
1,684.44 941.18
- 110,50
007 0.16
26,975,97 17,579.86
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in takhs Rs in lakhs
333.11 5.00
433.70 824.69
45113 451,13
11.58 10.87
785.92
(462.26) 323.67 -
- 131
0,00 Q.06
78.30 69.74
1,631,55 1.362.80

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 {March 31, 2621
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs

81.76 134.85

1,902.80 1,162.88

1,984.56 1,291.73

101.44 81.76

1,883.12 1,215.97

162,15 105.23

106.18 41.10

208.32 14633

97,55 102,15

110,77 44,18

1,993.89 1,260.15

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Rsin lakhs Rs in lakhs

4,685.49 3,531.06

320.73 20395

323.39 186.68

5,329,61 4,011.69




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to conselidated financial statemenis for the year ended March 31, 2022

25(a)

25(b)

28(c)

Power and fuel

Pawer and firel

Total

Stamp duty expenses

Stamp duty expenses

Total

Other Expenses

Censumption of stares, cutlery, crockery, tinen, provisions and others

Linen & uniform washing and laundsy expenses
Guest transportation

Spa expenses

Subscription charges

Repair and maintenance

- Buildings

- Plant and machinery

- Others

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Communicaticn costs

Printing and stationery

Traveling and conveyance

‘Vehicle nnning and maintenance
Advertisement and business promotion,
Management fees

Commission -other than sole selling agent
Security and cleaning expensos
Membership and subscriptions

Legal and professional fees

Advances written off

Water and sewerage charges

Freight and cartage

Donationg

Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment
Provision for doubtful debts

CWIP written off

Payment to auditor®

Miscellaneons expenses

Total

*Payment to aunditor (excluding Goeds and service tax)

For Statutory audit
For Tax audit
For Other services

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
2,765.81 210591
2,765.81 -2,10991

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Ra in lakhs
1,525,03 .
1,525,03 Z

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Ry in lakhs Rs in lakhs

469.83 338.13
363.59 164.35
74,62 64.69
48,64 3.69
71.54 55,29
187,97 34.49
530,16 33131
366,58 188.27
132.72 148.04
1,217.02 977.10
149,71 118,54
151,38 152,21
74.65 45.93
35.79 20.93
57.30 43,00
858.78 568.38
1,430.55 84650
1,269.15 867,69
242,34 186,77
9.25 15.73
31104 224.60

715 -
. 0.64
0.43 0AR

5.07 1645

(0.53) -
- 96,04

2.75 -
4300 43.00
113.07 49,17
8,323,535 5,598.82
33.00 33.00
2.00 2.00
8.00 8.00
43,00 43.00




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to lidated fi inl st ts for the year ended Mnrch 31, 2022
Details of CSR expenditure:
For the year eaded For the year ended
Marvch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in laldis Rs in lakhs
(8} Grass amount required to he speat by the Group during the year 5.07 9.42
In cash Yet {0 be paid in cash
(b) Amount spent during the yenr ended on 31st March, 2022;
iy Construction/acquisition of any asset " -
i} On purposes other than (i} above 507 -
T cash Yet to be paid in cash
{c) Antount spent during the year ended on 31st March, 2021:
i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -
i) On purposes other than (i) above 9.45 -

‘The Compauy, throngh CSR initiative focuses on following areas:

* Vocationa! skilling of Person with disabilities, for mainstream employzient

" » Empowerment of weaker section of soclefy through education and skill training
+ Giving special care to disabled's, advoeacy for inclesion and early identification of person with

disabilitiss
26 Deprecintion and amortization expense For the venr ended TFor the year endcd
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Depreciation of tangible assets 6,551,18 6.975.92
Amortization of intangible assets 76.34 68.02
Dreprecintion of right 1o use asset 1,299.61 1,285.37
Tatal 7,927.13 832031
27 TFinnnce costs For the venr ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rz in lalths Rs in lakhs
Interest
- on term loans from banks 8,881,26 9,685.10
- on loans from others 1,138.08 1,254.85
- on vehicle loans 21.10 3362
- on others 81,80 72.65
- on Lease Liability 2,494.46 2,522,52
Bank charges (including commission on eredit card collection) 161,18 96,22
Total 12,777.88 13,665,26
28 Finance income For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Rs in lakhs Rs in lakhs
Interest income on :
-Bank Deposits 204.95 465.82
- Interest on income tax refund 3855 38.71
Profit on sale of investrment 0.01 0,40
-Others 151.67 119.53
Total 395,18 524,46

9

Loss per share (Basic EPS and Diluted EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the periodivear attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted average tumber of

equity shares ontstanding during the pericd/year,

Diluted EPS amonnts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted avernge mimber of equity shaves
cutstanding during the period/year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issned en conversion of all the dilutive potential equity

shares into cquity shares.

The (loss)earnings and weighted averago number of ordinary shares nsed in the caleulation of Basic and Difuted EPS are as

For the year ended For ihe year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loss attributable to equity holders {for basic and diluted) {11,373,73) (13,511.28)
Woighted average number of equity Shares (for basic and diluted eamings per share)* 9,24,55,153 . 8,28,07,692
Basic and Diluted (Joss)eamings per share (12,30) {16.30)

* The weighted average number of stinres takes into aceount the weighied average effect of changes in shar¢ transactions during the year. There have been
no other iransactions involving equity shares or potential equity shares between the reporting date and the date of authorisation of these finaacinl statenients,




Fieur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

30.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities and other commitments. Uncertainty about these judgements, estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or
liabilities affected in future periods. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in
the period in which the estimate is revised.

Estimation of Uncertainties related to global health pandemic on COVID-19

COVID-19 pandemic has impacted and continues to impact major economic and financial markets around
the world. Regular business operations in many countries, have been severely disrupted due to lockdown,
travel bans, quarantines and other emergency measures. With respect to operations of the Group, it has impacted
its business by way of reduction in occupancy of hotels and average realization rate per room starting from the
month of March 2020 and management has undertaken/is undertaking various cost savings initiatives to
conserve cash coupled with the capital infusion amounting to Rs 175 crores in the form of Compulsorily
convertible preference shares. Management believes that the easing of lockdown in India including
flight operations and expected increase in business travel would be beneficial for the Group.

In evaluating the impact of COVID-19 on ifs ability to continue as a going concemn and the possible impact
on its financial position, the management has assessed the impact of macro-economic conditions on its
business and the carrying value of its major assets comprising of Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE),
Right-of-use (ROU) asset and trade receivables as at the balance sheet date. In this regard, the Management
has carefully considered the circumstances and risk exposures arising from the COVID-19 situation for
developing estimates on the basis of all available information in its assessment of impact thereof on its
financial reporting,

While assessing the recoverable amount of PPE and ROU asset, the Group has used significant assumptions such
as hotel occupancy rates, average room rate per hotel, terminal growth rate and weighted average cost of capital.
The Group appointed independent valuer to assess fair values of significant hotel properties owned independently,
which covered approximately 66% of value of PPE of the Group. Specifically for investments, the
Management has considered (i) the industry in which the investee entity operates (ii) The
geographic'location of the investee entity (iii) The size of the investee entity (iv) the quantitative
significance of the investee entity (v) liquidity risk premiums (vi) appropriateness of valuation
techniques and inputs used including current market agsessment of credit risk and liquidity risk and
(vii) other factors specific to the investee entity. For assessing the recoverable amount of trade receivables,
the Group has calculated the expected credit loss from the trade receivables considering amount to be realized from
them in future after factoring the impact on credit risk due to COVID-19,

Based on aforesaid assessment, management believes that the Group will continue as a going concern and
will be able to meet all of its obligations as well as recover the carrying amount of its aforesaid assets as on
March 31, 2022, :
Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from
COVID- 19 pandemic in the preparation of these financial statements. The associated economic impact of
the pandemic is highly dependent on variables that are difficult to predict. The impact assessment of COVID
19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and actual results
may differ materially from these estimates. The Group will continue to monitor any material changes to
future economic conditions and any significant impact of these changes would be recognized in the financial
statements as and when these material changes to economic conditions arise.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Critical judgements, estimates and assumptions
1. Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset that generates cash inflows and is independent of the cash
inflows of the other hotel properties, hence identified as cash generating units. The Group assesses the
carrying amount of hotel properties (CGU) to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss, Where the carrying amount of CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (if
any) is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

While assessing the recoverable amount, the Group used the discounted cash flow approach including
various significant estimates and assumptions such as forecast of future revenue, operating margins,
growth rate and selection of the discount rates. The key assumptions used for the calculations are as

follows:

Particulars Ag at March 31 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Discount Rate (pre tax rate of WACC) 11.70% - 13% 12.00%
Long Term Growth Rate 5.00% 5.00%

As at March 31, 2022, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying amount and
the change in estimated future economic conditions on account of possible effects relating to COVID-19
is unlikely to cause the carrying amount to exceed the recoverable amount of the CGU.

2. Leases

The Group has taken certain land and land & building on long term lease basis. The lease agreements
generally have an escalation clause and are generally non-cancellable. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease,
it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to
exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option to terminate the lease. The Group
evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of IND AS 116. Identification
of a lease requires judgment. The Group uses judgement in assessing the lease term and the applicable
discount rate. The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate.

3. Loss Allowance on trade receivables (Expected credit loss)

An impairment analysis of trade receivables is performed at each reporting period based on the Group’s
history of collections, customer’s creditworthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking
estimates. In calculating expected credit loss, the Group has also considered the likelihood of
consequential default considering emerging sitnations due to COVID-19 and has taken into account
estimates of possible effect from the pandemic relating to COVID-19. Basis this assessment, the
allowance for doubtful trade receivables as at March 31, 2022 is considered adequate.

4, Impairment of Goodwill

Each hotel property is an identifiable asset as it benefits from the synergies of the acquisition, hence
identified as cash generating unit (CGU). Goodwill recognized on business combination is tested for
impairment on annual basis or whenever there is an indication that the recoverable amount of CGU is
less than its carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on higher of
value-in-use and fair value less cost of disposal. The calculation of value in use of a CGU mvolves use

of significant assumptions including future economic and market copditi
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

31. Group information

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include subsidiaries and Limited liability partnership listed
in the table below:

Subsidiaries/LLP under Direct Control

Principal Country of % of equity interest
S.No. | Name of the Company Activities Incorporation March 31, | March 31,
. 2022 2021
1. Celsia Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%
2. Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Hotel Business 100% 100%
Limited India
3. IORA Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 100% 100%*
4. | Ophrys Hotels Private Limited Hotel Business India 160% 100%
5. | Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited | Hotel Business India 100% 100%
6. Bandhav Resorts Private Hotel Business 100% 100%
Limited India
7. Mezereon Hotels LLP Hotel Business India 90,099, 09,999
8. | Berggruen Hotels Private Hotel Business 100.00% 100.00%
Limited India

*Change in percentage in previous year as Begonia Hotels Private Limited and Nightingale Hotels Private
Limited has been merged with appointed date April 1, 2019




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

32, Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratuity plan (funded). The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972, Under the act, employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement
age. The fund has the form of a trust and it is governed by the Board of Trustees, which consists of an equal
number of employer and employee representatives. The Board of Trustees 'is responsible for the
administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the investment strategy. The Trust Fund has taken
a Scheme of Insurance, whereby these contributions are transferred to the insurer. The Group makes
provision of such gratuity asset/ liability in the books of accounts on the basis of actuarial valuation as per
the Projected unit credit method.

Rs. in lokhs
Benefit Liahility March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Gratuity plan 12475 146.99
Total 124.75 146.99

Risk analysis
Group is exposed to a number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefits plans and management estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Investment risk

The most of the Indian defined benefit plans are funded with Life Insurance Corporation of India. Group
does not have any liberty to manage the fund provided to Life Insurance Corporation of India.

The present value of the defined benefit plan Hability is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to Government of India bonds for Group’s Indian operations, If the return on plan asset is
below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk

A decrease in the interest rate on plan assets will increase the plan liability,

Longevity risk/life expectancy

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. Increases in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Salary growth risk A

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

The major categories of plan assets of the fair value of the total plan assets are as follows:

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
Unquoted investments:
Asset invested in insurance scheme with the LIC 100% 100%
Total 100% 100%

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligatiohs for the Group’s plans are shown below:

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Discount rate:

Pension plan 6.02% 5.60%
Future salary increases: ,

Pension plan 5.00% 5.00%
Life expectation for pensioners at the age of 65: Years Years
Pension plan :

Male 60 60
Female 60 60

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 is as shown below:

India gratuity plan:
Rs in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2022 2022 2022 2022
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease

Impact on defined benefit
obligation 4.97) 5.32 5.32 (5.06)




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

_ Ry in lakhs
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2021 2021 20n1 2021
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease
Impact on defined benefit _ _
obligation (6.15) 7.03 7.01 (6.65)

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that exirapolates the impact on defined

benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Rs. in lakhs

For the year ended For the year ended

Druration (Years) March 31, 2022 March 31, 2022
1 39.01 46.10
2 3247 40.60
3 30.86 33.10
4 22.08 - 30,00
5 17.39 22.10
Above 5 58,04 55.10
Total expected payments 199.85 : 227.00

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4.50 years
‘(March 31, 2021: 3.66 years).




Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

33, Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group has taken hotel properties under operating lease agreements. These are generally cancellable and

are renewable by mutual consent on mutually agreed terms. The lease for hotel properties are non-cancellable
for a period of twenty three to twenty nine years.

The weighted average of incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilitiesis 9.72% (March 31, 2021:
9.72%). '

b. Commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be execated on capital account and not provided for:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed and not provided for March 31, 2022 Rs. 15,035.53
lakhs (March 31,2021 Rs. 8,203.20 lakhs)

¢. Contingent liabilities
(i) Legal claim contingency

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

a, |Counter guarantees issued in respect of gnarantees
issued by company’s bankers 1,234.77 1,251.35
b. |Service Tax 225.05 176.27

The Group’s pending litigations abave pertains to proceedings pending with Income Tax, VAT tax and other
authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for
where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable, in its financial
statements. The Group does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a materially adverse effect on
its financial statements,

(ii) During the earlier years, Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, one of the subsidiary company, has taken land on
lease from Delhi International Airport {P) Ltd. (DIAL) for which South Delhi Municipal Corporation (‘the
Authority’} has raised demand of Rs. 68.20 lakhs (for the financial Years 2010-11 to financial years 2013-
2014) towards annual value in respect of the hotel property situated in Hospitality District, Aerocity.
Considering that the area occupied by the Company is 59% of the hotel property, it has made provision of Rs.
93.23 lakhs (Refer note 15) in thlS regard.




Fleur Hotels Private Limited .
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iii) Berggruen Hotels Private Limited (Subsidiary Company) has entered info a lease agreement in April, 2008 with
the land owners of the Baroda property to construct a hotel in the said property pursuant to whichsum of Rs.
100 Lakhs has been paid to the property owners as refundable security deposit. As per the Lease agreement, on
execution of the said Lease Deed, owners were obliged to deliver to the Company, vacant and peaceful
possession of the said property and to demolish existing structure standing thereon in order to enable the
Subsidiary Company to construct the proposed hotel on the said property. More than five years have elapsed
since execution of the said Lease Deed and despite various assurances and promises, the owners have failed to
hand over possession of the said property and hence the Subsidiary Company terminated the lease agreement
and asked immediately to refund the refundable security deposit alongwith interest at the rate of 25% per antum.
Subsequent to termination of the lease agreement, the Subsidiary Company has also filed the case against
owners for recovery of monies paid to them alongwith the interest. The Subsidiary Company expects the
judgment in its favour. '

(iv) The Group does not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material
foreseeable losses,

d. Note on Provident Fund;

Based upon the legal opinion obtained by the management, Company is not required to create provisions in
books of accounts in view of the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of Vivekananda
Vidyamandir vs Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (II), West Bengal and subsequent dismissal
of review petition by Hon’ble Supreme court in the case of review petition No. 001972-001973/2019 in civil
appeal 3965-3966 in the matter of Surya Roshni Ltd Vs Employees Provident Fund and Another.

Considering the equitable cause, the High Courts may give prospective effect to the judgement which can be
done in exercise of inherent powers of High Court under Article 226 of the constitution of India.

In case of Company retrospective effect is remote and at present uniformity is maintained across all
brands/grades. :

e. Sub Lease

The license fee recognised as income during the year for non-cancellable arrangements relating to provision for
sub Jease of Hotel as per the agreements is Rs.216.47 lakhs and Rs. 205.18 lakhs for the year ended March 31,
2022 and March 31, 2021 respectively.

Particular As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Future minimum lease payment receivable
Not later than one year ' 228.37 21647
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,046.21 991.66
Later than five years 3,402.10 3,685.01
| Total 4.676.68 4,893.15




Fleur Hotels Private Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

34, Related Party Transactions

Names of related parties
Holding company

Fellow subsidiary companies

Key Management Personnel

Key Management Personnel (Maﬁaging Director,
- Whole time director, manager and other managerial
personnel) of Subsidiaries

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

Enterprise in which Holding company has
Significant Influence

- Lemon Tree Hotels Limited

- Manakin Resorts Private Limited

- Canary Hotels Private limited

- Carnation Hotels Private Limited

- Hamstede Living Private Limited (As at March 31,
2021)

-Mr. Patanjali Govind Keswani (Chairman & Managing
Director)

-Mr. Rattan Keswani(Director) (Upto March 31, 2022)
-Mr. Dominic James Doran{Director)

-Mr. Anish Kumar Saraf (Director) (upto 29 May,2020)
-Mr. Paramartha Saikia( Independent Director)

-Mr. Ashish Kumar Guha (Independent Director)

-Mr. Arindam Kumar Bhattacharya (Independent
Director)

-Mr. Pradeep Mathur (Independent Director)

-Mr.Niten Malhan(Independent Director) (w.c.f. 6"
November, 2020)

-Mr. Sumant Jaidka (Whole Time Director of Inovoa
Hotels and Resorts Limited)

-Ms. Anshu Sarin (Whole Time Director & CEO of
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited)(w.e.f February 13,
2020)

-Ms. Natasha Yashpal (Whole Time Director of lora
Hotels Private Limited)

- Toucan Real Estates Private Limited

-Mind Leaders Learning India Private Limited
-Hamstede Living Private Limited (Upto March 30,
2021)

Additional related parties as per Companies Act 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the

year:

Chief Financial Officer

Company Secretary

: Mr. Inder Pal Batra
: Ms. Pooja Bakshi (upto May 23, 2020)
: Ms. Sonali Manchanda (w.e.f May 29, 2020)
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Fleur Hotels Private Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement
occurs in cash. For the year ended March 31, 2022, the Company has not recorded any impairment of
receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2021: Rs Nil). This assessment is
undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market
in which the related party operates.

Commitments with related parties

The Group has not entered into any commitments with related parties during the year.

35, Fair value measurement .
a. Financial assets Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised Cost FVTPL Amortised Cost

Financial Assets '

Trade Receivables o 1,492.08 - 1,986.63

Investments 0.41 ) 0.41 }

Seourity Deposits - 5,591.97 - 4,851.78

Other bank balances ) 634.44 - 2.148.25

Cash and Cash

Equivalents - 360041 B 8,613.96

Loans and } N )

Advances ]

Interest accrued on _

deposit with banks } 329.46 - 509,87

and others ‘

Other amount 490.91 o 1,095.65

recoverable -

Total Financial 0.41 12,139.27 041 19,206.14

Assets

b. Financial liabilities Rs. In lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
FVTPL Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Cost Cost

Borrowings - 1,28,001.71 - 121,825.40

Trade Payables - 5,643.82 - 8,294.82

Other Financial

Liabilities - 1,651.64 - 3,622.37
o - 28,193.70 - 32,769.10

Lease Liabilities

Total Financial '

Liabilities - 163,490.87 - 166,511.69
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. Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

The Group categorizes assets and labilities measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on
the ability to observe inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i) Level 1

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

i) Level 2

Inputs are inpufs that are observable, either directly or indirectly, other than quoted prices included within
level 1 for the asset or liability.

iii) Level 3

Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability reflecting significant modifications to observable
related market data or Group’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities:

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

March 31, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FVTPL

March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial assets

Financial investments as FYTPL

The management assessed that fair values of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payable} ©
bank overdrafts, Interest accrued on bank deposits with banks, other current financial assets and othe
current financial liabilities approximates their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of

these. instrinments.

The fair values of loans, security deposits, borrowings and other financial assels and liabilities are
considered to be the same as their carrying values, as there is an immaterial change in the lending rates.

e
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The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

s The fair values of the investment in mutual funds have been estimated based on NAV of the assets
at cach reporting date

36. FKinancial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations and to support its operations,
The Group's financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash & cash equivalents that
derive directly from its operations.

The Group is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's senior management
oversees the management of these risks. The Group's senior management is supported by a financial risk
committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
Group. This financial risk committee provides assurance to the Group's senior management that the
Group's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedure and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each risk, which are summarised as below:

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises interest rate risk Financial instruments affected by
market risk include loans and borrowings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates. The Group is
carrying its borrowings primarily at variable rate. The Group expects the variable rate to dechne
accordingly the Group is currently carrying its loans at variable interest rates.

R, In lakhs
March 31,
2022 March 31, 2021
| Variable rate borrowings 127,314.91 121,535.62
Fixed rate borrowings 686.79 289,78
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Interest rate sensitivity

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion
of loans and borrowings affected, after the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant,
the Group’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Effect on
Increase/decrease
in basis points profit
before tax

Rs. In lakhs

March 31, 2022
Floating rate borrowing 50 (613.18)
Floating rate borrowing =50 613.18
March 31, 2021
Floating rate borrowing 50 (640.93)

Floating rate borrowing -50 640.93

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has no exposure in foreign currency.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily
trade receivables and deposits to landlords) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and
financial institutions and other financial instruments,

(a) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by cach business location subject to the Group's established policy,
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with the assessment both in terms of number
of days and amount,

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. In
addition, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenous groups and assessed for
impairment collectively. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value
of each class of financial assets disclosed in Note 10. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

(b) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Group's treasury department in accordance with
the Group's policy. Investment of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within
credit limits assigned to each counterparty. The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the
components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2021 and March 2020 is the carrying amount as disclosed
in Note 10.
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Trade Receivable As at March 31, 2022 Rs in lakhs)
Ageing Gross trade receivable Expected credit loss Net receivable
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 1,033.75 1.52 1,032.23
61-120 days past due 199,45 1.09 198.36
121-180 days past due 148.66 3.16 145.50
180-365 days past due 116.89 10.34 106.55
More than 365 days 1,380.87 1,371.43 9.44
TOTAL 2,879.62 1,387.54 1,492.08

Trade Receivable As at March 31, 2021 (Rs in lakhs)
Ageing Gross trade receivable Expected credit loss Net receivable
Not due - - -

0-60 days past due 966.36 1.63 964.73
61-120 days past due 241.48 1.87 239.61
121-180 days past due 243.79 5.98 237.81
180-365 days past due 250.03 17.38 232,65
More than 365 days 1,736.64 1,424 .81 311.83
TOTAL 3,438.30 1,451.67 1,986.63

Reconciliation of provision for doubtful debts - Trade receivables
(including provision for expected credit loss)

Rs. In lakhs

March 31, March 31,
2022 2021
Provision at heginning 1,451.67 1,355.63
| Addition during the year - 196.04
Reversal during the year 64.13 100.00
Utilised during the year . -
Provision at closing 1,387.54 1,451.67.

Reconciliation of provision for deubtful debts - Loans and deposits (including provision for

expected credit loss)

March 31, March 31,
2022 2621
Provision at beginning - 8.75
Addition during the year - -
Reversal during the year - -
Utilised during the year - 8.75
Provision at closing - -
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Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk of a shortage of funds by estimating the future cash flows. The Group's
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
overdrafts, cash credit facilities and bank loans. The Group assessed the concentration of risk with respect
to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group has access to a sufficient variety of sources
of funding and debt maturity within 12 months can be rolled over with existing lenders. As at March 31,
2022, the group had available Rs. 5,265 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs. 3,563 lakhs) of undrawn committed

borrowing facilities.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual

undiscounted payments.
Rs.in lakhs
Less than 3 3to12 ,
On demand months months 1 to 5 years > 5 years Total

Year ended
March 31,2022
Borrowings 3,105.58 208,49 5,100.24 45,164.29 75,316.50 128,985.10
Trade and other 5.643.82 i i i i 5.643.82
payables
Other Financial
Liabilities 1,651.64 - - - - 1,651.64

10,401.04 298.49 5,100.24 45,164.29 75,316.50 136,280.56
Year ended
March 31, 2021
Borrowings 3,746.84 871.72 5,704.00 33,256.44 79,414.77 122,993.77
Trade and other $.294.8 i i i i 8.204.82
payables _
Other Financial
Liabilities 3,622.37 - - - - 3,622.37

15,664.03 871.72 5,704.00 33,256.44 79,414.77 134,910.96

The table provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as of March 31, 2022 as
on undiscounted basis

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Minimum Lease Payments :
Not later than one year 2,883.03 2,821.35
Later than one year but not later than five years 10,360.05 12,405.58
Later than five years 48,569.63 68,036.43
Total 61,212.71 83,263.95
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37. Capital management

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium
and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Group. The primary objective of the
Group’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. A

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions
and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The Group
monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group
includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash
equivalents. '

Rs. in lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borrowings (Note 15) 128,001.71 121,825.40
Trade payables (Note 20) 5,643.82 8,294.82
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) 3,600.41 8,613.96
Net debt 130,045.12 121,506.26
Total capital ' 142,292.05 153,628.57
Capital and net debt 272,337.17 275,134.83
Gearing ratio 48% 44%,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Group’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to
ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define
capital structure requirements.

Breaches in mecting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and
borrowing in the current period.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021,

38. Segment Reporting

The Group is into Hoteliering business. The Board of Ditectors of the Company, which has been identified
as being the chief operating decision maker (CODM), evaluates the Group performance, allocate resources
based on the analysis of the various performatice indicator of the Group as a single unit. Therefore there is
1o reportable segment for the Group as per the requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”,
Information about geographical areas

The Group has only domestic operations and hence no information required for the Group as per the
requirements of Ind AS 108 — “Operating Segments”,

Information about major customners

No customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the revenue
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39. Business Comhi_nation — Pooling of Interest Method

a) Amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited

During the previous year ended March 31, 2021, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the order
of scheme of amalgamation dated March 22, 2021 in respect of amalgamation of Begonia Hotels Private
Limited & Nightingale Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels Privaie Limited
(the Company) and the scheme was effective from March 31, 2021. The Appointed date is April 01,
2019.The Company has made allotment of 95,57,461 equity shares to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company on April 20, 2021 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets, liabilities and
reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been taken over at their carrying values. This
transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of interest method and
maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone financial statements
of the Transferor Company.

Name of the
Company

Principal
Activity

Date of
Acquisition

Proportion of voling
equity interest acquired

Consideration
transferred

Begonia Hotels
Private Limited

Hotel Business

April 1,2019

106%

1,46,45,682 shares of
the Begonia IHHotels
Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and 41,25,544
number of shares has
been issued to the
shareholders of Begonia
Hotels Private Limited
for consideration other
than cash.

Nightingale
Hotels Private
Lirnited

Hotel Business

April 1, 2019

100%

13,03,66,000 shares of
the Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited before
amalgamation  stands
cancelled and 54,31,917
number of shares had
been issued to the

shareholders - of
Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited for

consideration other than

cash. .
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The detail of asset acquired and liabilities recognized as at April 1, 2019 are as follows:

Rs. in lakhs

Begonia Hotels

Nightingale Hotels
Private Limited i imi

Private Limited

Assets

Property, plant and equipment(including 1,567.95 9,014.07
intangible assets)

Financial assets-Non Current 2,301.10 1,154.56
Other Non-Current Assets 46.02 90.33
Inventorics ' 13.67 21.42
Financial assets-Current : 793.92 1,202.95
Other Current Assets 75.28 56.03
Total Assets 4,797.95 11,539.36
Liabilities .
Borrowings 25.64 4,947.42
Other financial liabilities 373.67 570.97
Provisions ' : 5.77 11.56
Other current liabilities 65.87 55.95
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 37.60 -

Total Liabilities 508.54 5,585.89
Other equity 4,142.92 4,649.85
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private 412.55 543.19
Limited issued as per the swap ratio to

shareholders of the Transferor Company.

Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on April 1, (266.07) 760.43
2019

b) Amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited

During the year previous ended March 31, 2020, the National Company Law Tribunal approved the
order of scheme of amalgamation dated January 21, 2020 in respect of amalgamation of Meringue
Hotels Private Limited (the Transferor Company) with Fleur Hotels Private Limited (the Company)
and the scheme was effective from January 1, 2020. The Appointed date is April 01, 2019.The
Company has made allotment of 12,265,439 equity shares to the shareholders of the Transferor
Company on February 13, 2020 as per the swap ratio mentioned in the Scheme. The assets, liabilitics
and reserves of the Transferor Company as at April 01, 2019 has been taken over af their catrying
values. This transaction has been accounted as per Ind AS 103 using the pooling of interest
method and maintaining the identity of the reserves as those appeared in the standalone
financial statements of the Transferor Company,
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Proportion of

Name of the Principal llzztifsfi tio voting equity Consideration
Company Activity o q interest transferred
acquired
Meringue Hotel April 1, 100% 2,152,209 shares of
Hotels Business the Meringue
Private : Hotels Privaie
Limited Limited before
amalgamation

stands  cancelled
and 12,265,439
number of shares
had been issued to
the shareholders of
Meringue  Hotels
Private Limited for
consideration other
than cash.

The detail of asset acquired and labilities recognized as at April 1, 2019 are as follows:

Amount in Rs. Lakhs

Property, plant and equipment(including

capital work in progress) 32.389.18
Financial assets 1,261.27
Total Assets 33,650.45
Liabilities _
Borrowings 16.811.08
Other financial labilities 4,110.89
Provisions 7.71
Other current liabilities - 15.16
Total Liabilities 23,944 .84
Other equity 9,684.09
Equity share capital of Fleur Hotels Private

Limited issued as per the swap ratio to

shareholders of the Transferor Company. 1,226.54
Capital Reserve A/c recognized as on

April 1, 2019 ' 1,205.02
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40. On November 1, 2019 i.e. effective date, Fleur Hotels Private Limited, the subsidiary company
of Lemon Tree Hotels Limited, acquired 100% of share capital of Bergpruen Hotels Private
Limited engaged in the business of owing, operating and managing hotels and resorts The
business acquisition was conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for the total net
consideration (including other related expenses) of Rs. 49,504.16 Lacs paid to Berggruen
Investment, Mauritius (Seller) in cash. :

- The excess of the purchase consideration paid over the fair value of assets acquired has been
attributed to goodwill and the goodwill is not tax deductible.

The excess of the purchase price has been allocated based on management estimates and
independent appraisal of fair value as follows: '

Particulars Carrying value as on October Fair Value as on October
31,2019 \ 31,2019

eqpfl‘i’;’;‘g; plant and 27,600.77 4741341
Right to use assets 1,360.91 1,360.91

_prcoagfz{:sa; work-in- 3.13 | 3.13
Intangible agsets 1.70 1.70
Intangible assets —

management and , - 1,960.00

franchised contract
Intangible assets — brand - 100.00
Other non-current assets 742.59 742.59
Current assets™* 2,618.78 2,618.78
Non-current liabilities (9,450.19) {9,451.52)
Current liabilities (5,083.38) (5,083.48)
Lease liability (3,044.08) (3,044.08)
Deferred Tax liability (2,223.28) (2,223.28)

e T iy 5350
Total 12,526.95 33,782.16
Purchase price : 49,504.16
Goodwill 15,722.00

*Included cash and cash equivalents amounting Rs. 998.43 lakhs

The goodwill of Rs. 13,721.94 lakhs comprises value of expected synergies arising from the business
combination,
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41. During the earlier year, Iora Hotels Private Limited (“Subsidiary Company) entered into a sub-lease
agreement (“agreement’) with Mumbai International Airport Private Limited (MIAL) for the right to
operate, manage and develop the hotel at Chhatrapati Shivaji International Airport at Mumbai for
initial term upto May 02, 2036, extendable at the option of the Company for an additional pertod of
30 years. In terms of the agreement, the Company has placed an interest free security deposit of Rs.
16,600 lakhs (March 31, 2021:-Rs. 16,600 lakhs) to secure the payment of annual lease and
performance of all other obligations under the agreement refundable upon transfer of possession of
asset to MIAL at the expiry of the agreement term.

42, The carrying arﬁount of goodwill has been allocated to CGUs as follows:

Rs in lakhs
Particulars Amount
Berggruen Hotels Private Limited 15,721.94
Bandhav Resorts Private Limited 673.42
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited 4,698.68
Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited 1,008.44
Celsia Hotels Private Limited 2,950.74
Others : : 1.19
Total 25,054.41

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels Private Limited as a
cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the directors beyond five year period and a pre-tax WACC rate of
12% (2019-20: 12.5%) and terminal growth rate of 5% (2019-20: 5.5%).

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets were as follows:

i) Forecast sales growth rates: Forecast sales growth rates are based on past experience adjusted for
historic measures and market trends analyzed through independent valuer.

(ii) Operating profits: Operating profits are forecast based on historical experience of operating margins,
adjusted for the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving initiatives. :
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44.

45.

Sensitivity analysis:

The Group has conducted an analysis of the sensitivity of the impairment test to changes in the key
assumptions used to determine the recoverable amount for each of the group of CGUs to which goodwill
is allocated. The Management believe that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on
which the recoverable amount of Berggruen Hotels Private Limited, Bandhav Resorts Private Limited,
Hyacinth Hotels Private Limited, Inovoa Hotels & Resorts Limited and Celsia Hotels Private Limited
is based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
the related CGUs.

43. Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006.

Rs in lakhs
March 31, | March 31,
2022 2021
the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining!  385.60 199.52

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section Nil Nil
16 of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accounting vear

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay Nil Nil
in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006.

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the Nil Nil
end of each accounting vear; and

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable Nil Nil
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprisefor the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006

Fleur Hotels Private Limited has made provision of estimated stamp duty expense of Rs. 1525.03
Lakhs on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited, Begonia Hotels Private Limited and
Nightingale Hotels Private Limited. This provision of stamp duty expense is a one- time expense
of non-recurring nature. '

During the year, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had reached an arrangement with the Lessor for
termination of lease in Chandigarh which was subsequently approved by the High Court of Punjab
and Haryana on April 18, 2022. Basis this arrangement, lease accounting for the said property has
been terminated by derecognizing Right of Use of Assets, Lease liability and Security deposits.
Accordingly gain on termination of lease for Rs 323.67 Lakhs has been recognized in Other
Income
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44.

45,

46,

47.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

)

Fleur Hotels Private Limited has made provision of estimated stamp duty expense of Rs. 1525.03
Lakhs on amalgamation of Meringue Hotels Private Limited, Begonia Hotels Private Limited and

Nightingale Hotels Private Limited. This provision of stamp duty expense is a one- time expense

of non-recurring nature,

During the year, Fleur Hotels Private Limited had reached an arrangement with the Lessor for
termination of lease in Chandigarh which was subsequently approved by the High Court of Punjab
and Haryana on April 18, 2022, Basis this arrangement, lease accounting for the said property has
been terminated by derecognizing Right of Use of Assets, Lease liability and Security deposits.
Accordingly gain on termination of lease for Rs 323.67 Lakhis has been recognized in Other
Income

Amendements/Standards notified but not yet effective

Note on Social Security:

The Code on Wages, 2019 and Code on social security, 2020 (“the codes”) relating to
employee compensation and post-employment benefits that received Presidential assent
have not been notified. Further, the related rules for quantifying the financial impact have
not been notified. The Company will assess the impact of the codes when the rules are
notitied and will record any related impact in the period in which the Codes. become
effective.

There are no new amendements/standards (other than above) that are notified, but not yet effective
up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements.

QOther Statutory Information

The Company have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961,

The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the company for holding any Benami property

The company do not have any transaction with companies struck off;
The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section
2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the
Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(vi) The Company have not received any funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (Tntermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or,

(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

48. There has been no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
* Protection Fund by the Group.

49.  Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to correspond
with the current year classification.

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fleur Hotels Private Limited
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Patanjali G, Keswani Indef]’m

Chairman & Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
ﬂ\;@&;
li Manchanda
Company Secretary

Place; New Delhi
Date: May 27, 2022
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